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« ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2015

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for ICAP Group Holdings ple (IGHP) ( the
Company ) and its subsidiary companies (together ‘the Group } for the year ended 31 March 2015

Principal activity, business review and future developments

The Company 15 a holding company and corporate treasury vehicle for ICAP plc and its subsidiary companies (together the ICAP plic
Group')

The Company 1s ncarporated and domiciled i England and Wales The registered office 1s 2 Broadgate London, EC2ZM 7UR.

A review of business actmties future developments and a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group 15 given mn
the strategic report on page 3 and 4

Dwvidends

For the year ended 31 March 2015, dvidends of £255m (201 3/14- £167m) were paid during the year to ICAP plc, the ultimate parent
company
Going concern

After reviewing the Group s annuat budget liquidity requirements, plans and financing arrangements, the directars are satisfied that
the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future and confirm that the
Company and the Group are going concerns

At 31 March 2015 the Group has several committed credit faolities including a £425m committed Revolving Credit Faciity
incorporating a swingline facility of up to a $200m with a matunity date of December 2016 (see note 9) In March 2014 the
Company 1ssued €350m five year senor notes with a coupon of 3 125%, and matunty in 2019 Ths financed the repayment in uly
2014 of €300m of serior nates Under the agreement for these credit faalities, the Group and the ICAP ple Group are required to
comply with certain covenants As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the ICAP plc Group complied with the terms of all its
financial covenants and there are no indications for directors to beheve that the Group and the ICAP plc Group will fail to comply
with these covenants in the foreseeable future

For the above reasons, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis n prepaning these financial staternents

Charitable donations

The Group takes part in the annual ICAP Charity Day where the revenue for one day 15 donated to nominated chanties Duning the year
the Group made charitable donations amounting to £8m (2013/14- £8my)

Crsability policy
The Group s equal opportunity and diversity policy are governed by its parent, ICAP pic and are disdlosed in full in its annual report

Events after the balance sheet date

On 1 April 2015 ICAP pic confirmed the detalls of the transaction to dispose of rts shipbroking businesses to Howe Robinson Group Pte
binited for a 35% equity stake in the resulting combined group business

Independent Auditors

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP were re-appomted auditors to the Company at the annual general meeting m July 2014 Resolutions to re-
appaint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and to authonse the directors to set their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting

Provision of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a drrector at the date of approving this report s aware, there 15 na relevant audtt information, beng
information needed by the auditors in cannection with prepanng thewr report, of which the auditors are unaware Each director has taken
all the steps that he 1s cbhiged to take as a director in order to make him aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information




+ ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2015 continued

Drrectors

The directors of the Company, whao held office dunng the year were

D Gregg Appointed 25 Novemnber 2014
O Clreland

D A Abrehart

| W Torrens Resigned 21 November 2014
K Pgaga

S Caplen Resigned 26 fanuary 2015

Staternent of drectors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepaning the directors report and financi2l statements in accordance with applicable faw ana
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directars have
prepared the Company and Group financial statements in accordance with Interational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union (EU) Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they gve a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that year

in preparing these financial staternents the directors are required to
¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
e  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

*  state whether apphcable IFRSs as adapted by the EU have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained n the financial statements, and

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1 In2ppropriate to presume that the Company and
the Group will continue n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Company's and
the Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Comparnies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safequarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other wrregulanties

Directors’ statement pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The directors are also required by the Disclosure and Transparency Rules to include a management report contaiung a fair review of
the business and a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the Company and the Group Each of the directors,
confirms that, to the best of their knowledge and belef

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view of the assets,
habilties, financial position and profit or toss of the Company and the undertakings ncluded in the consolidation taken as 2
whole

»= the management report disclosures which are contained in the business review and include a far review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings ncluded in the
conschdation taken as a whole together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face,

+  there s no relevant audit nformation of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

s they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director m order 1o make themselves aware of any
relevant audit nformation and to estabhsh that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

By order of the Board

DA Ahre:an 29 lune 2015

Oirector




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2015

The directors present thew strategic report and the audited consobdated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2015

Business review

The Group s business invalves the provisicn of speaialist broking services to trading professionals in the global wholesale financial markets
across 3 broad range of OTC financial products and sernces in commodities (including shipping), FX and money markets interest rates,
credit and equity markets and also prowides its customer base with access to post-trade nsk services data and commentary The Group
stnves to add value to its customers by (1) improving price discovery and transparency, (n) providing anonymuty and confidentbiaity (m)
faclitating nformation flow, and (v) enhancing liquidity For further details on the Group's trading activities, see ICAP plc's 2015 Annual
Report (from page 36)

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group reported revenue of £1,185 milkon, 7% below the prior year

During the course of the year, the Group's trading performance was impacted by a combination of structural and cychcal factors
Bank deleveraging, in response to stncter requlatory capital requirements, negatively impacted the trading activity of ICAP s
customers particularly n the Global Broking dwsion This was partly offset in the second half of the year by the European
quantitative easing announcements and the speculat:on on the tming of a US interest rate nse which resulted in increased volatihty
Some of the revenue loss within Global Broking was as a result of closed businesses as the Group successfully completed its
restructuring programme

In response to the challenging trading conditions experienced towards the end of 2013/14 and into the first half of 201 4/15, the
Group embarked on @ comprehensive review and restructunng of the Glebal Broking division As a result of this action, coupled with
improved market volumes and new product initiatives, in the second half of 2014/15 the Group delvered a trading profit before
tax of £122 milion

The 8% increase in Post Trade Risk and Information revenue was driven through increased partiapation in tnReduce portfolio
compression cycles and the uptake of the portfolio reconciliation service triResalve Subscription-based revenue increased in
products such as CreditLink and cross-asset regulatory reporting in Traiana Electronic Markets revenue decreased 2%, with EBS
revenue increasing by 2%, offset by a 2% revenue decrease in BrokerTec

Group net trading operating expenses of £348 milbon were 4% lower than the previous year, mostly driven by an 11% decreasen
Global Broking as the cost saving programme initiated over the past three financial years has taken £175 milion of cumulative
annualised costs out of the business £41 million of net cost savings were achieved from the successful completion of the Group's
2014/15 restructuring programme A further £12 milon of incremental net annualised savings attributable to the prior year cost
reduction initiatives was also achieved Additionally, the flexibility of the cost base continued to be enhanced through the
restructuring of broker compensation as contracts became due for renewal

Consistent with the Group s growth strategy, ICAP continues to make significant investment in the Electronic Markets and Post
Trade Risk and Information divisions Duning the year the Group invested £43 milhion in new business lines including EBS Direct, the
ICAP SEF, triCalculate and Traiana Limithub, an increase of £1 million compared with the same penod last year

The Group reported a trading operating profit of £237 mllion, 17% down on the prior year The Group’s trading operating profit
marqin reduced to 20% (2013/14 - 23%) The proportion of the Group's trading operating profit generated from the Electronic
Markets and Post Trade Risk and Information dvistons increased to 80%, reflecting a nine percentage point increase on the prior
year

Exceptional tems

The Group discloses separately in the notes 1o the accounts items that are non-recurnng and material in terms of both size and
nature (see note 4) This allows appropriate visibthty of these items and reflects how informatron 1s reviewed by management

For the year to 31 March 2015 exceptional tems were £73m (2013/14 - £76m) before a tax credit of £16m (2013/14 - £12m)
The costs principally related to the Group s restructunng prograrmme amed at focusing and realigming systems, processes and legal entity
structures and increasing workforce productimty Additionally a fine was imposed for alleged competition violations in respect of yen Libor
settlements with the CFTC and the FCA as discussed in the ICAP plc 2015 Annual Report which does not form part of this report

Qutlook

Since the start of the financial year the external environment has been mixed and we continue to expect near term headwinds as the
pickup in market actvity remains episodic. The restructuring programme has delivered on its target, the benefits of which wil be to
contnbute to funding our continuing INvestment in new INIatives




« ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2015 continued

Key performance indicators (KPls)

The Group s operations are managed on a dvisional basts, which are monitored using certain KPls The development performance and
position of the ICAP plc Group which ncludes the Graup, are discussed in the ICAP plc 2015 Annual Report which does not form part of

thrs report
Risk management, principal risks and uncertainties

The Group 1s predominantly exposed to operational, strategic, and hquidity nsk The Group s nsk management 15 consistent wath that of
iCAP plc Group, whereby nsk management 15 as dynamic as the global market n which it aperates The ICAP plc Group evolves its nsk
management process and continually seeks tosmprove it The following areas have been of particutar focus for the Group and will continue
tobe so

- ensuring strategic abyectives for product expansion, growth markets and re-focus of our market leading franchuses are appropriate to
our nsk appetites and capabilities,

- contnuing to mantain a strong balance sheet

- keeping pace with and leveraging business opportunities created by the dynarnic regulatory environments within which ICAP operates
- active assessment of ICAP’s credit exposures durmg stressed market conditions,

- strengthenmg our ICAAP to ensure appropnate cover for matenal nsks in stressed conditions, and

- renforeing culture and conduct through positive risk behaviours, monitoring and training

A more detaded nsk management report of the ICAP plc Group, which includes the Group, can be found n the ICAP plc 2015 Annuat
Report, which does not form part of this report

By order of the Board

ONNaehawv

N A Abrehart 729 lone 20015
Director



. ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Independent auditors’ report to the members of ICAP Group Holdings plc

Report on the financial statements
Qur opiman
in our opinion

- ICAP Group Holdings plc's group financial staternents and company financial staterments (the “financial statements™) gve a true
and fair view of the state of the group's and of the company's affars as at 31 March 2015 and of the group’s profit and the
group’s and the company s cash flows for the year then ended,

- the group financal statements have been properly prepared m accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs"} as adopted by the European Union,

- the company financal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Uinion
and as apphed in accordance with the provsions of the Companies Act 2006, and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
What we have audited
ICAP Group Holdings plc s financial statements comprise

- Consohdated and Company balance sheet as at 31 March 2015,

- Consolidated income statement and consohdated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended

- Consoldated and Cormpany statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

- Consolidated and Company staternent of changes in equity for the year then ended,

- the accounting policies, and

- thenotes to the financial statements, which include other explanatory information

The finanaial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financal statements 15 apphcable law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the company financial staterments, as apphed in accordance wath the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

in apphying the financial reporting framework the dwectors have made a number of subjective udgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumpbons and considered future events

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opirion, the information given In the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the finanaal year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, i our opmion
- wehave not recewed all the nformation and explanations we require for our audst, or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not wsited by us, or

- the company finanaal statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceptions to report ansing from thrs responsibility
Responsibifities for the financial statements and the audit
QOur responsibilities and those of the directors

As explamed more fully m the Statement of directors’ responsibihties set out on page 2, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opiion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)™) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s
Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Thes report including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companes Act 2006 and for no other purpose We da not, in gmng these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for




. ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Independent auditors’ report to the members of ICAP Group Holdings plc continued

any other purpose or to any other person to whom this repart 1s shown ar into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent m wnting

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit In accordance with ISAs (UX & Ireland) An audit nvolves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures
N the financial staterments sufficent to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from maternal misstaternent,

- whether caused by fraud or errar This includes an assessment of

- whether the accounting polices are appropriate to the group s and the company s crcumstances and have been consstently
appled and adequately disclosed

- thereasonableness of signficant accounting estimates made by the directors and
- the overall presentation of the financial statements

We primarilly focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors judgements aganst avalable evidence, formmg our own
judgements, and evaluating the disdosures in the financial statements

We test and exarmine information using samphng and other auditing techriques, to the extent we consider necessary to prowide a
reasonable basis for us to draw condusions We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the finanaial and non-financial information n the Group and Company financial statements to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited finanoal statements and to identfy any information that is apparently matenally ncorrect based on, or
matenaly inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us m the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

nstopher Rowldnd (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behat!f of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

29 June 2015




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 March 2015

Acquisition
#nd disposal Exceptiona)

Trading costs ftems Torsd

Hote £m m £m £m

Revenue 1 1,185 - - 1,185
Operating expentes 3 (947) (59) (73) (1,079)
Other expense (1) - - (1)
Operating profit 1 237 (59) (73) 105
Finance income L \ 8 3 S —. . 3
Finance costs 8 (49) - - (49}
Share of profit of jint ventures after tax 21 3 - - 3
Share of profit of assocates after tax 22 3 .. 3
Profit before tax 197 {59) (73) 65
Tax 6 (35) 15 16 (4)

Profit for the year 162 (44) (57 61

Attributabile to:

Owners of the Company 163 (43) (57) " 62
Non-controlling interests 1) - - )

162 (44) (57) 61




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 March 2014

Acquiston
and dposal Exceptional

(restated) Note = “tm “m T
Revenue 1 1,269 - - 1,269
Operating expenses 3 (988) (79) (76} (1,143)
Other income g - z 5
Operating profit 1 286 (79) (76) 131
ﬁnce ncome 8 8 2 - 10
Finance costs 8 {58) - - {58)
Share of profit of joint ventures after tax 21 2 - - 2
Share of profit of associates after tax 22 3 - - 3
Profit before tax 241 (77 (76} as
Tax 6 (52} 26 12 (14)
Profit for the year 189 (51) (64) 74
Attributable to
Owners of the Company 191 (51 (64} 76
Non-controlling interests (2) - - (2)

189 (51) (64) 74




JCAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended
e
2015 Em
Note Em (restated)
Profit for the year ) . 61 74
Other comprehensive income/{expense) . . . _
hems that will be redassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met
Revaluation gam in the year N 26 1 -
Cash flow hedges
~far value (losses)/gains 26 (37 6
- fair value gans transferred to ncome ;t-atement 6 29 2
T @ 8
Exchaungé differences . 103 (133}
Income taxes - (1)
QOther comprehensive income/|expense) for the year, net of tax 96 (126)
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the year 157 (52)
Total comprehensive income/{expense) attributabie to: o o
Owners of the Company T B ) 154 (50}
Non-cont-r.olllng Interests i ) 3 (2
157 (52)




CAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Consolidated and Company balance sheet

Company number: 06694512

Group Company
Asa
Asat 31 March Asat Asat
31 March 31 March 31 March
2015 fm 2015 2014
Mot £m (restated) Em £Em
Assets .
Non-current assets i
Intangible assets ansing on consohdation 13 916 919 - -
Intangible assets ansing from development expenditure 12 .. 115 100 - -
Property and equipment 24 32 36 - -
investment in subsidianes 20 - 4,937 3,682
Investment in joint ventures 21 8 6 - -
Investment in associates 22 61 60 - -
Deferred tax assets 6 5 10 - -
Trade and other recervables 17 . 5 4 - 1
Available-for-sale investments 23 15 16 - -
Amounts owed by affiliates 17 70 70 - -
_ 1,227 1221 4,937 3,683
Current assets _ .
Held for sale assets 14 21 - - -
Trade and other receivables i 17 24,572 23,201 401 338
Restricted funds ~ 10 36 2 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 10 440 658 43 247
25,069 23891 444 585
Total assets 26,296 25112 5,381 4 268
Lighilities _ )
Current Rabilites -
Trade and other payables 18 (24,784) (23115 (2,394) (1,076)
Borrowings g9 . (30) (247) - (246)
Tax payable i (35) (57 - -
Held for sale habilitres 14 (4) - - -
Provisions 15 (18) (10 - -
o __(24,871) (23429) (2,394)  (1,322)
Non-ausrent liabilities
Trade and other payables R 18 (36) 8 (30) -
Borrowings 9 _(252) (288) (252) (288)
Amounts owed to affilates (700) (872) (699) (699)
Deferred tax habilities 6 (73)_ (73) - -
Retirement benefit obligaticns B — ) 4y - -
Prowisions 15 {19) {8) - -
{1,086) (1.253) {981) (987)
Total liabiiities (25,957)  (24.682) {3.375) (2.309})
Net assets 339 430 2,006 1959
Equity .
Called up share capital o 25 233 233 233 233
Other reserves _ B 26 300 307 (2) -
Translation o 197 88 - -
Retained earnmgs (433) (247) 1,775 1,726
Equity attributabie to owners of the Company _ 297 3N 2,006 1.959
Non-cantrolling interests 42 39 - -
Total equity 339 430 2,006 1,959

The financal state

paacoreoa\ |
Director

10

pages 7 to 58 were approved by the board on 29 June 2015 and signed on its behalf by




JCAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Other Attributable Noa-

Share reserves Retained to owrarsof controfling

capital (ncte 28} Transiation rarmings the Lompmy nreresty Towt
Yeur ended 31 March 2015 Em Em £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 Apnl 2014 233 307 a8 (247) 391 39 430
Profit for the year - - - 62 62 . (e
Other comprehensive
{expense)/income . S
Cash flow hedges - (8) - - R - (8)
Exchange differences - - 99 - 99 4 103
Revaluation gains realised in the year - 1 - - 1 - 1
Total comprehensive
{expense)l/income
Em,uir_ o = _ 99 62 154 3 157
Share-based payments in the year - - - 7 7 - 7
Daadends paid in the year - - - {255) {255} - (255)
Batance at 31 March 2015 233 300 197 (433) 297 42 339

Other Artributable Noa-

Share reserves Retainad to owner of

captal {note 26) Transhon earnngs. the Company nierests Total
Year ended 31 March 2014 {restated) £m £m £m £m £ tm £m
Balance at 1 Aprl 2013 233 289 23 (157) 606 50 656
Profit for the year - - - 76 76 (2) 74
Other comprehensive
uicgmel(expense) _
Cash fiow hedges - 8 : - B - 8
Income taxes N - - - (1) () - (1}
Exchange differences ~ - (133) - (133) - (133)
Total comprehensive
income/{expense)
for the year - 8 (133) 75 (50) (2) (52
Other movements in non-controlling
nterests - - - 2 2 2
Dwadends paid in the year - - - (167) (167) (9) (176)
Balance at 31 March 2014 233 307 98 (247) 39 39 430

11




ACAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Company statement of changes in equity

Share Hedging Retsined
capital reserve sarmings Total
Year ended 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £&m
Balance as at 1 April 2014 233 - 1,726 1,959
Profit for the year - - 304 _ 304
Hedgng movement o ) - (2) - {2)
Total comprehensive {expense)/irrcome for the year - (2) 304 302
Dwidends paid in the year ) - - {255) (255)
Balance as at 31 March 2015 233 {2) 1,775 2,006
Share Hedgng Retaned
N capat tesarve sarmungs Toal
Year ended 31 March 2014 (1] £m £m Em
Balance as at 1 April 2013 233 @) 2,029 2,261
Loss for the year . - - (136) (136)
I-'Ijezal.ng movement T T - 1 - 1
Total comprehensive income/(expense} for the year - 1 (136) {135}
Dnidends paid wn the year - - (167 {167}
Balance as at 31 March 2014 233 - 1,726 1,959

12



ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Consolidated and Company statement of cash flows

Group Company
Year ended

Year ended 31 mach Year ended Year enced

31 March W14 31 March 31 March

2015 Em 2015 2014

Note £m (restated) £m Em

Cash flows from operating activities 10(a} 192 182 1,499 272

Cash flows front investing activities T

Dwidends recerved from subsidianies - - 416 68
Dividends received from associates 4 4 - - -

Dividends recerved from joint ventures 1 4 - -
Other equity dividends received - 3 - -

Payments to acquire property and equipment (8) (13) - -

intangrble development expenditure {48) (52) - -

Proceeds from disposal of avallable-for-sale investments - 1 - -

Proceeds from disposal of interest in subsidizries - 3 - -

Acquisition of nterests in subsidiaries (&3] - L -

Praceeds from disposal of subsicharies 1 - - -
Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries - . “(1 A 93 (192}

A;ZQUISItI'On of associates and joint ventures ) i - ) (5) - -
Net cath flows from Investing activities (51) (55} (1,303) (124)

Dlw-dends paid to non-controlling interest - (9} . -
Dividends paid to owners of the Company (141) {167) 141) (167)
Repayment of borrowings (259) (71} (259) {71)

Funds recetved from borrowing, net of fees - 288 T 288

Net cash flows from financing activities (400) 41 {400) 50

Net [decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {259) 168 {204) 198

Net cash and cash equivalents at beginming of the year 657 543 247 49
FX adjustments o 12 (54 - =

Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year* 10%{c) 410 657 43 247

*Net of £30m overdraft as at 31 March 2015 (2013/14 - £1m) for the Group

13




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Basis of preparation

Preparation of financial statements

The consclidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB and the interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretabons Comsmittee (IFRIC} and ther
predecessor bodies and as endorsed by the EU and the Comparues Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS In publishing
the parent company financial staternents here together with the Group financial statements, the Company has taken advantage of the
exempton in section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its indmdual Income staterent, ndnvadual statement of
comprehensive income and related notes that form a part of these financial statements The financial statements are prepared in pound
sterting, which 15 the functional currency of the Company and presented in milions ICAP Group Holdings plc 15 incorporated and dormiciled
inthe UK

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are included within the nates to which they relate and are
shaded in blue

The preparation of financial statements requires management to apply judgements and the use of estimates and assumptions about
future condiions Management considers imparrment of goodwill and other intangible assets ansing on conscldation (note 13) to be the
area where increased judgerment s requrred Further information about key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty. are set out In the relevant notes to the financial statements Estimates and assumptions are continuousty
evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factors, mcluding expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the crcumstances Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results reported in future penods may be
based on amounts which differ from those estimates Rewisions to accounting estimates are recogmised in the penod in which the estimate
s revised and in any future penods affected.

Quning the year Group adopted the following new accounting standards

+ IFRS10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements' (replaced IAS27 Consclidated and Separate financial Statements”)
« IFRS11 "Jont Arrangements’ (replaced I1AS31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures ),

» IFRS12 ‘Disciosure of Interests in Other Entities’,

* IAS27 Separate Financial Statements’ (replaced 14527 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’), and
s IASZ8 ‘Investments in Associates and Jomt Ventures' (replaced IAS28 Investments in Associates”)

The adoption of IFRS11 Joint Arrangements’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Jont Ventures® had a matenal effect on the
consolidated income statement as the Group’s joint ventures are now accounted for using the equity accounting method under 1AS28
Income statemnent and balance sheet ine tems for the prior year comparatves have been restated The impact of the retrospective
adoption on the profit after tax for the year ended 31 March 2014 was £nil, but restated revenue and operating expenses were £9m and
£6m lower respectively The balance sheet impact was immatenal hence an opering balance sheet as at 3 Apnl 2014 has not been
presented Restated non-current assets were £2m hugher, offset by a decrease of £1m in restated current assets The £1m net increase
in restated total assets was offset by a £1m increase in restated current trade and other payables

The adoption of other standards had no matenal Impact on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

The consalidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis (see page 1)

Presentation of the income statement

The Group mantains a columnar format for the presentation of its consolidated income statement The colurmnar format enables the
Group to contwwe its practice of improwving the understanding of its results by presenting its trading profit Trading profit 1s reconciled to
profit before tax on the face of the consoldated ncome statement, which also includes acquision and disposal costs and exceptional
itemns

The column ‘acquisition and disposal costs’ inchudes any gains losses or ather associated costs on the full or partial disposal of
investments, associates, joint ventures or subsidianes and costs associated with a business combination that do not constitute fees
relating to the arrangement of firancing, amortisation or impairment of Intangible assets ansing on consoldation, any re-measurement
after initial recogrition of deferred contingent considerabion which has been dassified as a liability, and any gains or losses on the
revaluation of previous interests. The column may also include tems such as gans or losses on the settlement of pre-existing relationships
with acquired busmesses and the re-measurement of labiities that are above the value of ndemnification

iterns which are of a non-recurnng nature and material, when considerng both size and nature, are disclosed separately to give a dearer
presentation of the Group's resuits These are shown as “exceptional items’ on the face of the consolidated ncorme statement

Basis of consclidation
The Group's consolidated financial statements mdude the results and net assets of the Company, its subsidiaries and the Group’s share
of joint ventures and associates
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.ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Basis of preparation continued

Basis of consolidation continued

Subsidianes

Anentity 1s regarded as a subsidiary if the Group has control over its strategic, operating and financial policies and intends to hold the
investment on a long-term basis for the purpose of secunng a contribution to the Groups actmities

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group The cost of acquistion 1
measured at far value of the assets given, equity nstruments issued and liabrdities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange

ldentifiable assets acquired and liabiities and contingent habifities assumed in the business combination are measured ntially at thesr fair
values at the acquisttion date, rrrespective of the extent of any minority interest The excess of the cost of acquisitien over the far value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwilt if the costs of the acquisition are less than the farr value of
the net assets acqured, the dfference is recognised directty in the consolidated income statement

Fees associated with an acquisition are expensed as incurred When the Group iIncreases its investment in an entity resultmg in an
associate becoming a subsidiary, the intangibles related to the acquisition are valued and the element of those not previously recognised
as a share of net assets are recorded as revaluation gains realised in the year in other comprehensive income A change of ownership
that does not result in a loss of contro! 1s classified as an equity transaction, with the difference between the amount by which the non-
controling interest 1s recorded and the farr value of the consideration received recogrised directly in equity

Where the Group has issued a put option over shares held by a non-controling nterest, the Group derecognises the non-controling
interests and instead recognises a contingent deferred consideration lisbility for the esumated amount likely to be paid to the non-
controlling nterest on exercise of those options The residual amount, representing the difference between any consideration
paid/payable and the non-controlling interest’s share of net assets, s recognised N equity Movements in the estimated iability after initial
recognition are recognised within the consolidated income statement Where the Group has a call option over shares held by a non-
contralling interest, the Group continues to recognise the non-controling interest until it 1s certain that the option will be called At that
point the accounting treatment s the same as for a put option

The results of companies acquired during the year are ncluded in the Group's results from the effective date of acquistion The results
of companies disposed of during the year are incuded up to the effective date of dispasal

The Group treats transactions with non-contralling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases from non-
controling nterests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acqurred of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary 1s recorded i equity Gains or osses on disposals to non-controting interests are also recorded in equity

On consolidation, the accounting pohicies of Group companes (the Company and its subsidianes) are consistent with those applied by
the Group Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group comparies are ebminated as part
of the conschidation pracess Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred

Joint ventures

A joint venture 1s an entity in whach the Group has an interest and in the opinion of the directors exercises joint control over its operating
and financial palicies An interest exists where an nvestment is held on a long-term basis for the purpose of secunng a contribution to
the Group’s activiies Followmng the adoption of IFRS11 Joint Arrangements’ and 1AS28 ‘Investments in Associates and Jont Ventures'

on 1 April 2014, mvestments m joint ventures are recogrised using the equity method Under this method, such investments are inttially
stated at cost, including attnbutable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for the post -acquisition change in the Group's share of

net assets

Associates

The Group dassifies iInvestments in entiies over which it has signficant influence, but not control, and that are nether subsidianes nor joint
ventures, a5 associates. iInvestments in associates are recogrsed using the equity method Under this methed, such investments are initally
stated at cost including attnbutable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acqursition change m the Group’s share of net assets
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Basis of preparation continued

Foreign currencies

In indradual entities, transactons denominated m forergn currencies are recorded at the prior month closing exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency At each end of the reporting penod, monetary assets and hiabiiies that are denominated in
forexgn currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period Exchange differences are recogmised in the
conschdated income statement, except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary assets and kabities where these form part of
the net iInvestment of an overseas business or are designated as hedges of a net investment or cash flow and therefore, the changes in
value resulting from exchange differences are recognised directly in other comprehensive income

On consohdation, the results of businesses with non-pound sterling functional currencies are trarslated into the presentational currency
of the Group at the average exchange rates for the year where these approximate to the rate at the date of the transactions Assets and
iabilties of overseas businesses are translated into the presentational cusrency of the Group at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of
the reporting peniod Exchange differences arsing are recognised within other comprehensive income  Cumulative translation differences
anging after the transition to IFRS are taken to the consclidated income statement on disposal of the net nvestment

Goedwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a non-peund sterbng entity are treated as assets and habilities of that entrty
and translated nto the presentational currency of the Group at the penod dlosing rate Where applicable, the Group has elected to treat
goodwill and farr value adjustments arsing before the date of transition to IFRS as denominated m the presentational currency of the Group

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash flows dencminated in foreign currencies are translated into the presentational currency
of the Group at the average exchange rates for the year or at the rate prevailing at the time of the transaction where more appropnate
Future accounting developments

At 31 March 2015, the following standards have been issued by the IASE which are not effective for these consolidated financial
statements

o nJuly 2014, IASB 1ssued IFRS9 ‘Financial Instruments , which wall replace 1AS39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’
The standard will be effective for annual periods beginring on or after 1 January 2018 IGHP intends to adopt IFRS9 for its financial
statements for the year ending 31 March 2019, and

¢ in May 2014, IASB issued IFR515 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, which will replace IAS18 Revenue and 1AS11
Corstruction Contracts and other related interpretations on revenue recognition The standard will become effective for annual penods
beginrung on or after 1 January 2017 IGHP ntends to adopt IFRS15 for its financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2018

The impact on IGHP financial statements from the adoption of these IFRS standards is currently being assessed and will be disclosed closer
to the time of the adoption
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Index to the notes to the financial staternents
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Segmental information

The Group has determined its operating segrments based on the managernent information including trading revenue and trading operating
profit reviewed on a regular basis by the Company's board The Group considers the executive members of the Company's board to be
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) ICAP's three operating segments are Electronic Markets, Post Trade Risk and Information
and Global Broking

Revenue compnses brokerage or access fees from its Hectrome Markets business, fees from the prowsion of Post Trade Risk and
Information services and commisston from the Group's Global Broking division

Electronic Markets

The Group acts as a broker for FX, interest rate denvatives fixed income products and credit default swaps through the Group's electrome
platforms Revenue 15 generated from brokerage fees which are dependent on the average trading volumes The Group also charges fees
to use the electronic trading platform for access to Iiquidity in the FX or precrous metal markets

Post Trade Risk and Information

The Group recetves fees from the sale of financial information and prowision of pest trade nsk and information services to third parties
These are stated net of VAT, rebates and other sales taxes and recogrised in revenue on an accruals basis to match the provision of the
service Amounts recervable at the year end are reported as other trade receivables within trade and other recevables (note 17}

Global Broking

Matched principal and stock lending business

Certain Group comparies are involved in a non-advisory capacity as principals in the matched purchase and sale of secunties and other
financial nstruments between our customers Revenue Is generated from the difference between the purchase and sale proceeds and 15
recogmised in full at the time of the commitrnent by our customers to sell and purchase the security or financal instrument The revenue
generated by the stock lending business s not material to the Group

Agency business (name give-up)

The Group acts in a non-adwisory capacity to match buyers and sellers of financial nstruments and raises invoices for the service provided
The Group does not act as pnncipal In name give-up transactions and only receves and transmits orders between counterparties
Revenue Is stated net of rebates and discounts, VAT and other sales taxes and is recogrised in full on the date of the trade Amounts
recenvable at the year end are reported as other trade recevables within trade and other recewables (note 17)

For the shipbroking business, the Group acts in a non-adwvisory capacity to match buyers and seliers of services and recogruses revenue,
net of rebates and discounts, VAT and other sales taxes when the Group has a contractual entitlement to commussion, normally the point
at which there 1s a completion of contractual terms between the pnincipals of a transaction Amounts recewvable at the year end are
nckuded in the disposal group {(note 14}

Execution on exchange busmness

The Group also acts as a broker of exchange-listed products, where the Group executes customer orders as pancipal and then novates
the trade to the underlying customer’s respective cleaning broker for settlement Revenue 1s generated by raising an invoice and is
recognised on the trade date
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Notes to the financial statements cantinued

1 Segmental mfermation continued

Year ended 31 March 2015

Slectronic Post Trade Risk
Markets ang information Global Broking Yotal
£&m &m Em Em
Revenue per the ICAP Group 259 228 789 1,276
!
Adjustrent for non IGHP subsidiary companies 91)
Revenue per the IGHP Group 1,185
Operating profit before acquisition and
disposal costs and exceptronal items per the ICAP
Group 23 97 62 252
Adyustment for non IGHP subsidiary compares (15)
Adustrment for acquistion and disposal costs (59)
Adjustment for exceptional iterms (73)
Operating profit per the IGHP Group 105
Year ended 31 March 2014 {restated)
Electronx: Post Trade Rsk
Markers and Informaton Giobal Brokang Tatal
£m Em Em £m
Revenue per the ICAP Group 265 212 a01 1,378
Adjustment for non IGHP subsidiary companies ' (109)
Revenue per the IGHP Group 1,269
Operating profit before acquistion and disposal costs
and exceptional items per the ICAP Group 107 96 87 290
Adustment for non IGHP subsidiary companies (4}
Adjustment for acquisition and disposal costs (79)
Adjustrnent for exceptional items (76)
Operating profit per the IGHP Group 131

The Group does not earn more than 10% of its total revenue from any indnidual customer

The Group earned revenue of £434m (2013/14 - £471m) and £460m (2013/14 - £514m) from entities in the UK and US respectvely
The remamnder of £291m (2013/14 - £284m) came from vanous entities from outside the LK and US
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2. FX exposures

The table below shows the actual impact on the Group’s 2015 and 201 4 results of the movement dunng the year of the dollar and eurc
exchange rates in terms of transactional and translational exposure

For the year ended 31 March 2015 For the year ended 31 march 2014 (restated)
Oollar Ewro Total Doltar Euro Total
Em Em £m Em Em Em
Group operating profit {10) (4) (13) - (7) (7

The Group does not hedge the translation of those profits or losses earned by its non-pound sterling operations

The principal exchange rates whch affected the Group, expressed in currency per pound sterling, are shown below
Closing rate Closing rate Averags rate Average rate

s sat year endaed year ended

31 March 39 March 31 march 31 March

2013 2014 2013 2014

Dollar 1.48 167 1.61 159
Euro 1.38 i 1.28 119

The table below shows the mpact on the Groups 2014/15 resufts of a 10 cent appreciation, which the Group considers to be an
approprate sensitivity measure, in the dollar and euro mn terms of transactional and translational exposure

Dotlar Euro Total
Em £m Em
Group operating profit 8 4 12
See note 28 for the Group s currency rsk management approach
3. Operating expenses
Year ended
Year ended 31 March
31 March 014
Profit before tax 1s stated after charging mgr: (rcsut:;ln
Trading operating expenses
Employee costs 625 669
Information technology costs 128 147
Professional and legal fees (including auditors’ remuneration) 35 38
I-J‘e;:r:aa;:l_or-i and mparment of property and—eampment T 5 T s
Governance costs 21 19
Cleanng.and settlement fees T 17 19
Operating lease rentals - minimum lease payments 20 21
Exchange adjustments - a 2
Other 92 68
Trading operating expenses . _ _ 947 988
Acquisition and disposal costs .
Amaortisation of intangibie assets arising on consaolidation 55 64
Impairment of intangible assets arising on consohdation - 1"
Qther acquisitton and disposal costs 4 4
WI and disposal costs ) ) ) B 59 79
Exceptional items (note 4) 73 76
Total 1,079 1143

* Employee costs as per note 7(a) are £675m (2013/14 - £682m) Remaming employee costs of £33m are included n the £73m exceptional costs for
the year Governance costs indude fees associated with nsk complance, internal audit and legal Additionally £17m (2013/14 - £14m) of employee costs
are mchuded i governance costs
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3. Operating expenses continued
The operating expenses include fees patd to PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the statutory audit of the Company of £40,000 (2013/14

- £40000) Fees pad to the Company s auditor and its assoaiates for services other than the statutory sudrt of the Company are not
disclosed in these accounts since the consohdated accounts of ICAP plc Group disclose these fees on a consolidated basis

4. Exceptionai iterns

Exceptional items are non-recurnng significant items that are considered matenal m buth size and nature These are disclosed separately
toenable a full understanding of the Group’s finanaial performance

Yeur ended Yeo anded
31 March 31 March
20158 2014
Em £m
Exceptional itemns before tax n
Restructuring programme - employee termination costs o L 33 .
Restructuring p};)gramme - property exits . 18 -
Restructuning programme - other ) . L. 7 -
Regulatory matters including assoaated legal and professional fees 15 76
Total exceptional items before tax . . 73 76
Tax credit (16) (12)
Total exceptional items after tax 57 64
Restructuring programme

In response to the prevailing market conditions ICAP Group has completed a restructunng programme aimed at focusing and realigning
systems processes and legal entity structures and increasing workforce productmity The programme covers all of the Group's actwities,
with a particular focus on the Global Broking dvision and Group infrastructure

In the year ended 31 March 2015, 496 brokers and 244 infrastructure employees left the ICAP pic Group This resulted in £33m
of exceptional costs in IGHP

Addimonally, office spaces in key regions inchuding London, New York and Singapore have been vacated and are currently being marketed
for sublease As such, £18m of property ext costs including onerous lease provisions and associated moving costs were charged to the
income statement This included a provision for onerous lease and associated costs of £17m, net of £3m of estimated mcome from the
sublease of one of the properties As at 31 March 2015, income from subleasing of other properties could not be refiably estimated,
hence the provision only reflects the present value of rental charges of the obligations over the lease penods of these properties In
2015/16, it 1s possible that some of the provision will be released when there are more certainties over ncome from the subleasing of the
properties See note 15 for the prowisions

Other restructunng costs 1s pnmarnly driven by the impairment of IT assets and legal and professional fees connected with the Group
reorganisation

Regulatory matters

Regulatory matters include £11m prowision relating to a €14 9m fine imposed by the European Commussion for alleged competition
wviolations 10 relation to yen Libor, in respect of the same underlying matters that ICAP Europe bimited, a subsidiary of ICAP’s Global Broking
drssion, settled with the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) and the US Commodity Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) i September
2013 ICAP has appealed and 1s seeking a full annulment of the Commission s decision

The remaiming £4m relates to assaciated legal and professional costs incurred duning the year on regulatory matters, principally as ICAP
continues to co-operate with the CFTC m therr nvestigation into the setting of USD ISDAfix rates See note 16

5. Dividends

For the year ending 31 March 2015, total dwvidends of £255m (2013/14 - £167m) were praposed by the Board consisting of
payments of £156m and £99m (2013/14 - £125m and £42m) Dndends for the year were settled through cash payments of £141m
{2013/14 - £167m) with the remainder offsetting mtercompany recervable of £114m (2013/14 - £nl)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

6. Tax

Tax on the profit for the year comprises both current and deferred tax as well as adjustrments in respect of prior years Tax s charged or
credited to the consokdated income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly to equity, in which case the tax 15 also nduded i other comprehensive Income or directly within equity respectively

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the pertod, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end
of the reporting penod

Deferred tax is recognised using the liabilty method, in respect of temporary differences between the camying value of assets and
ligbilities for reporting purposes and the tax bases of the assets and liablines Deferred tax 15 calculated at the rate of tax expected to
apply when the lizbility 1s settled or the asset is realised A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be avalable agamst which the asset can be utiised Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences ansing on
investments in subsidianes, joint ventures assocates and intangibles ansing on consobdation, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference 1s controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future Deferred tax liabdities are offset against deferred tax assets within the same taxable entity or qualifying local tax group where
there is both the legal nght and the intention to settle on a net basis or to reahse the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

Calculations of current and deferred tax kability have been based on ongoing discussions wath the relevant tax authorities, management's
assessment of legal and professional advice, case law and other relevant guidance Where the expected tax outcome of these matters 15
drfferent from the amounts that were recarded intially, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax amounts in the perod n
which such determination s made

Tax charged to the consolidated iIncome statement in the year

Year ended
Year ended 31 March
31 March 2014
Tax on trading profit e (remﬂ
Current tax
Current year 32 63
Adjustment to prior years T S ] ] ] (8) (21
- 24 42
Deferedtax o
Current year 11 3
Rajustmént to pnBr years' ) ’ ) ) B N
1" 10
Tax charge on trading profit 35 52
Tax credit on acquisition and disposal costs )
Currentyear o - (1}
Rdiustment to prior years - ) - ) - "9
Deferred tax current N {15} (19}
Deferred tax adjustment to prior years T T ] ) - EE)
Total tax credit on acquisition and dispasal costs (15} (26)
Tax credit on exceptional costs L . o
C—u_rrentyear ) ) T T T T o e —(;1)
Adjustment to prior years o = _(5)
Deferred tax charge on exceptlc;nal—lterns— T T ) - o4
Total tax credit on exxeptional costs (16) (12)
Totad tax charge to the consolidated income statement 4 14

The Group's share of joint ventures in the consolidated mcome statement is shown net of tax of £1 m (2013/14 - £1m)
The Group s share of profit of assocates in the consolidated income statement is shown net of tax of £2m (2013/14 - £2m})
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Notes to the financial statements continued

6. Tax continued
Tax charged to the consofidated income statement in the year continued
Year ended ';Tm
31 March W14
015 Em
Em (restated)
Trading profit before tax 197 241
Tax on trading profit at the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK of 21% (201 3/34 - 23%) 42 55
Reconciling items .
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ) 2 4
Non-taxable income ) (3) (2)
Impact of overseasEx-r;;s and bases 1 8
Prior year adjustment to current and deferred tax (8) {13)
Impact of change in rates 1 -
Totat tax charge on trading profit 35 52
Year ended
Year ended 31 March
21 March w014
2018 Em
£m (restated)
Profit before tax 65 as
Tax on profit at the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK of 21% (2013/14 - 23%) 14 20
Reconciling items
Trading profit (see above) M (3)
Acquisition and dlsgosal costs and exceptional items not deductible for tax purposes . 15
Impact of overseas tax rates on adjusted items B ) ()
Impact of change in rates on adjusted items - (1)
impact of prior years' adjustments on adjusted items ) o o= 12
Total tax changed to the consolidated Income statement 4 14

The standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK changed from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April 201 4 Further reductions to the
man rate have been enacted reducing it to 20% from 1 April 2015 Deferred tax will therefore unwind at a rate of 20% in the penod
10 31 March 2016

Deferred tax balances recogmsed on the balance sheet

As at

As st 31 March

31 March 2014

018 Em

£m {restated)

Deferred tax assets s 10
Oeferred tax habilities (73) (73)
Net balances (68) {63)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

6. Tax continued
Deferred tax - movement of Group balances before offset withm countries
Deferred
trtangible ncome
a3ty and Lorses
ansang on relsted acorued carrigd
Goodwill consolidaton tems Lxpenses forwsrd Other Total
£m £m £m £m Em Em £m
Net balances at 1 Aprd 2014 (61) (28) 2 a4 2 - (63)
Tax (charge)/credit (8) 15 2 q)) (2 (2) 4
FX adustments {8) (2) 2 - - 1) (9)
Net batances as at 31 March 2015 (77) (15) 24 3 - 3 (68)
Deferred
Intangible income
anets Employee- and Losses
armng on relsted accrued camed
Gooowil consaldaton nams expenses forward Ozher Tota
(restated) £m £m £m £m £m £m £
Net balances at 1 Aprl 2013 (47) (50) 20 6 3 5 (63)
Tax (charge)/credit (19) 19 2 (1 (5) (6)
FX adjustments 5 3 (2) - - - 6
Net balances as at 31 March 2014 (61) (28) 20 4 2 - (63)

Deferred tax assets of £15m (2013/14 - £15m) have not been recognised in respect of certan trading losses because it 1s not probable
that future profits will be avalable against which the Group can utihse the benefits The pnncipal movement in deferred tax relates to the
ongong release of the deferred tax habilty on the amortisation and impairment of intangibles ansing on consolidation

7. Employee information and expense

Payments to defined contribution schemes are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement as they fall due Any
difference between the payments and the charge 15 recogmised as a short-terrn asset or Lability

(a) Analysis of employee costs

Year ended

Yaar snded 31 March

31 March 2014

2015 £m

£m {restated)

Gross salaries (including bonuses) ) . 651 666
Social security costs . i _ 49 52
Share-based payments i i 7 -
Pension costs 9 7
Gross employee costs o 716 725
Ernployee costs capitalised as internally generated intangible assets (note 12) (41) (43)
Net empioyee casts 675 682

Employee costs of £675m includes £642m charged to the trading column in the iIncome statement and £33m presented as exceptional

costs (note 4)

As at 31 March 2015, there 1s a net defined benefit lability position of £6m (2013/14 - £4m)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

7. Empioyee information and expense continued
(b) Number of employees analysed by business segment

Average Year end
Yex encled As at
Year ended 31 March As st 31 March
31 March 014 31 March 2014
2015 {restatad) 2018 {restated)
Efectronic Markets 566 511 605 538
Post Trade Risk and Information 586 529 613 556
Global Broking 2,057 2,384 1,761 2,317
Infrastructure 719 708' §_88 712
3,928 4132 3,667 4123

A charge of £nif (2013/14 - £ni) was recogrused in the consolidated income statement relating to share options held by key management
personnel of the Group

Company
The Company had no employees dunng the year The directors of the Company are also the employees of ICAP plc Group and ther
remuneration costs were borne by a fellow subsidiary company of ICAP plc

8. Net finance expense
Year ended
Year ended 31 March
31 March 2014
018 Em
&m (restated)
Finance Income
Intevest receivable and similar income H T
Bank deposits 3 1
T T T ” E - S
Dividends received on equity investments - 3
Revaluation of deferred considerations T - 2
Fair value gans on financial instruments - -
e - - T - s
) ~ 9
Total finarnce income 3 10
Finance costs - _
Interest payable and similar charges )
Bank loans and overdrafts (24) (28)
Interest payable to affiiates (24) (30)
Unwinding of deferred consideration o T ) -
Total finance costs {49} (58)
Net finance expense {46) (48)

Interest rate nsk exposure

The Group has an exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on both its cash positions and borrowings which it manages through a
combinauon of pound sterling, euro, yen and dollar debt drawn on fixed and floating rate terms The Group's objective 1s to minimise its
interest cost and the impact of interest rate volatlity on the Group s consolidated income statement |n addition to debt, the Group's
treasury pohcies also permit the use of dervatives including interest rate swaps interest rate optwons, forward rate agreements and cross
currency swaps to meet these objectives
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Notes to the financial statements continued

8. Net finance expense continued

At 31 March 2015, after taking into account the cross currency swaps of the euro denominated five-year seor notes the Group had
£163m of cash, £30m of floating rate debt and £180m of fixed rate debt denorminated n pound sterling, £184m of cash and £nil debt
derominated in dollars and £93m of cash and £72m of fixed rate debt denomtnated in other currencies A 100 basis-points parallel
Increase N pound Sterling Libor and Libkd rates, which the Group considers to be an appropnate sensitvty measure, would increase profit
after tax and other comprehensive income by £1m with a similar movernent in dollar rates impacting profit after tax and other
comprehensrve mcome by £2m In the event that Libor and Libid rates diverge, by each addtional 100 basis-paints in pound sterling and
dollar rates profit before tax would reduce by £2m for both currencies

The details of the external interest rate beanng financia! habdities are disclosed i note 9 The Group also has two subordinated loans of
£125mand £575m due to affilates which carry interest of 5 5% and UK Libor plus 2% respectively A 100 basis-point movement would
impact profit and equity by £6m

A 100 basis-paints parallel ncrease in Libor and Libid rates, winch the Group considers to be an appropniate sensitmty measure, would
decrease net finance costs by £1m in relation to pounds sterling and by £2m in relaton to dollars In the event that Libor and Libid rates
each diverge by an additional 100 basis -points, net finance costs would increase by £2m in relation to pounds sterling andby £2m n
relation to dollars

Company

The Company had £9m (2013714 - £224m) of cash denominated m pound stering, £28m (2013/14 - £20m) of cash denominated n
dollars and £6m (2013/14 - £3m) of cash denominated in other currencies The interest rate nsk exposure on the company’s debt 1s the
same as that disclosed for the Group as all debt s held by the company

9. Borrowings

Long-term borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being ther 1ssue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred At subsequent
reparting dates long-term borrowings are held at amertised cost using the effective interest rate method, with changes in value
recognised through the consolidated income statement Transaction costs are recogrused n the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective nterest rate method

{a) Long-term borrowings

Group Group Company Company

2014/15 201314 2014415 201374

im im im £m

As at 1 April 288 256 288 256
New long-term borrowings - 288 - 288
Reclassified as short-term borrowings - (246) - (246)
Exchange adjustrment (36) (6) (36) (6)
Farr value hedging adjustment - (4) - (4)
As at 31 March 252 288 252 288
Faor value Group Far vale Group Company G ry

At s asat nit asat s

31 March 31 March 31 march 31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 204 2mMs 014

Analysis of long-term borrowings £1m ”:1.: zo£1:‘ £m £m £m
Five-year senor notes repayable 2019 262 252 289 2838 - -

The five-year senior notes are presented on the balance sheet at amortised cast, net of fees To enable the Group to manage the
translational exposure which anses as a result of the notes being denorminated in euros and to meet its nsk management objective of
minimising both interest cost and the impact of nterest volatiity on its consolidated income statement, the Group entered into a number
of cross currency swaps to convert its obligattons over the ife of €250m of the notes from euros to pound stering at an FX rate of 1 21
These swap from a fixed effective euro interest rate of 3 20% to a fixed pound sterfing interest rate of 4 39% The swaps have been
accounted for as a cash fow hedge and at 31 March 2015 have a far market value of £28m labiity (2013/14 - £1m asset} and they
offset the effect of FX on the notes This resulted in a £nil charge (2013/14 - £nil) being recognised in the consolidated income
statement and a £nil credit (2013714 - £nil} i other comprehensive income durmg the year The remaining € 100m of the notes remain
in euros and have been designated as a net investment hedge of the Group’s euro-denominated net assets
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9. Borrowings continued
{a) Long-term borrowings continued
The Group's £425m RCF was undrawn at 31 March 2015 (2013714 - undrawn) and s0 1 not shown in the table above The RCF has a

maturty date of Decernber 2016 and incorporates a $200m swinghne facility of which $75m s available as a late day fronted solution
The weighted average effective interest rate for the year was 2 5% (2013/14 - 2 5%)

The Group’s bank facilities contain a number of customary financial and operational covenants included in these, the Company is required
to remain as the uttimate holding company in the Group The Group and Company remained in complance with the terms of all its financa!
covenants throughout the year ended 31 March 2015

Farr values of the five-year senior notes repayable 2019 have been measured using level 1 far value measurement inputs.
At 31 March 2015, the Group had committed headroom under 1its core credit faciities of £425m {2013/14 - £425m)

Committed facibzes
Grop Group Grow Growp
asat B asat asat
31 March 31 March 37 March 31 March
2015 2013 2014 2014
Em Em Em Em
Orwwn Undrawn® Orawn Undrawn®
Less than one year - - 246 -
Between one and two years - 425 - 425
Between two and five years 252 - 288 -
252 425 534 425

*The undrawn balance has been classified based on the matunty date of the facility

At 31 March 2015 the Company's long-term issuer ratings were Baa3 (negative) by Moody's and BBB (stable) by Fitch In December
2014, Moody's downgraded its rating from 8aa2 to Baa3, reflecting its opinion on pressure facing the interdealer broking industry

The five~year senor notes are issued in the Company

(b) Short-term borrowings
Fair value

st Group Far vale Group Company Company

MM } nat &% at -3 9 & at asat

31 March 3% march 311 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2015 014 2014 S 2014

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Five-year senior notes repayable 2015 - - 252 246 -~ 246
Overdrafts 30 30 1 1 - -
30 30 253 247 - 246

Since October 2012 the Group has entered into a senes of yen 10bn term loans with Takyo Tanshy Co LUmited, borrowing each for a
term of up to six months These loans have been refinanced ether immediately on matunty or a few days thereafter with similar terms
The most recent loan was repaid on 27 March 2015 and a new loan was entered into on 9 Apnl 2015

Bank overdrafts are for short-term funding and are repayable on demand, and are generally repaid within a very short time penod
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10. Cash
Cash and cash equvalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term hughly hquid nvestments whuch are subject to
isigruficant nsk of change in fair value and are readity convertible into a known amount of cash with less than three months maturty

The Group holds money, and occasionally financial instruments, on behalf of customers (cient monies) in accordance with local regulatory
rules Since the Group s not benefically entitled to these amounts, they are excluded from the consolidated balance sheet along with the
corresponding habilitres to customers.

Restricted funds compnse cash held with a CCP deanng house, or a financial institution providing ICAP with access toa CCP, and funds set
aside for regulatory purposes, but excluding client money The funds represent cash for which the Group does not have immediate and
drect access or for which regulatory requirements restnct the use of the cash

{a) Reconciliation of Group profit before tax to net cash flow from operating activities

Group
o~ R o o R
31 Merch 204 31 March 31 march
2015 £m 2015 2014
£m (restated) £m £m
Profit/(loss) before tax 65 _ B8 282 (153)
Operating exceptional items B 73 76 - -
Income from Investments in subsidiary comparves ) - - {4186) (68)
Share of profit of associates after tax (€} (3) - -
Share of profit of joint ventures after tax - (3) (2} - -
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries - - 18 154
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets ar;s—rr:g on consoldation 55 75 - -
imortnsatuon and imparrment of mtangible assets arsing from development-expenduture 34 27 - -
Depreciation and impairment of property and equipment a 13 15 - -
Other acquisition and disposal costs 2 1 - -
Share-based payments B 7 (m - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary - 2 - -
Net finance expense h 47 47 64 58
Release of trading provision i - 1 - -
Operating cash flows before movemernts in working capital 290 326 (52) (9)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recevables 153 (7} (59) 188
Timing differences on unsettied match principal trades (30) - - T
(Increase)/decrease n restricted funds B - (4——)- (2) - T
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (115) 59 1,635 144
Cash generated by operations before exceptional items 294 376 1,524 323
Operating exceptional tems paid™ (46) {72) - -
Cash generated by operations 248 304 1,524 323
Interest receved ) 2 1 2 1
Interest pad @n sa)  @n (52
Tax paid (31) (69) - -
Cash flow from aperating activities 192 182 1,499 272

*indudes £8m settled with the SEC (note 15)

The movement in trade and other recervables and trade and other payables exciudes the mpact of the gross-up of matched principal
trades as permitted by 1AS7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ The gross-up has no impact on the cash flow or net assets of the Group The cash
flow movement in trade and other recervables includes the net movement on matched principal transactions and deposits for securities
borrowed /loaned
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10. Cash continued
(b) Net cash
Net cash comprises total cash less ather debt

Asat
1 March
S
018 Em
Group £m (restated)
Borrowmngs (note 9) (282) (535)
Cash and cash equvalents 440 658
Total net cash 158 123
(c) Total cash
As at
As at 31 March
31 March 2014
2018 £m
Group £m (restated)
Cash and cash equivalents 440 658
Overdrafts (note %) (30) (1)
Net cash and cash equivalents 410 657
Restricted funds 36 32
Total net cash 446 689
(d) Chent money

At 31 March 2015, the Group held chent money of £2m (2013/14 - £13m) This amount, together with the corresponding habilities
to customers, 1s not ncluded in the Group's consolidated balance sheet

(e} Restricted funds
Restricted funds comprse cash held at a CCP cleanng house or a financial institution providing ICAP wath access toa CCP The balance
fluctuates based on business events around the year end and increased dunng the year by £4m to £36m at 31 March 2015

11. Capital and liquidity planning and management

The Group does nat seek to take proprietary market nsk postions so does not seek to expose its capital to market nsk, and it does not
undertake any form of matunty transformation so does not seek iquidity nsk Thus the overall approach to the planning and management
of the Group s capital and iquidity 1s to ensure the Groups solvency, 1 e its continued ability to conduct business, deliver returns to
shareholders and support growth and strategc itiatives This nsk profile meets the necessary conditions for an investrment firm
consolidation waiver and the Group continues to benefit from a warver under the CRD IV prowisions i force since 1 January 2014

Liquidity

Group

The Group incurs exposure to iquidity nsk as a result of trades executed as prinapal and trades executed on exchange on behalf of dients Since
prncpal trades are executed as matched pancpal there s no net funding requirement i the nommal course of business and the Igtadity
requrements anse only n relation to the margin and collateral requirements of deanng houses, ether directly or via finanaial nstitutions that
provide ICAP waith access to the cleanng houses

in order to execute and dear matched pnnapal trades in secunties the relevant entites need access to cleanng and settlement faciities, which
requires access to credit dunng the settlement cyde, so typrcally only for a one to three-day penod Inorder to execute trades in on-exchange
denvatives the entities need access to credit facilibes to carry the trades uritd they are taken up by customers.

In both cases, the Group can be required to post colateral or margin to support the credit ines, so access to liquidity s needed to ensure trades
can continue £o be supported uninterrupted The most signficant margin requirements anse i the US where, as part of ks Global Broking and
Electronic Markets busnesses ICAP provides deanng services to customers and 1s required to deposit margins with the AICC and NSCC Trading
entities of the Group use locally held highly biquid assets predominantty cash held to meet capital requirernents, together with committed and
uncormmitted credit faciities to meet ther bquidity requrements

The Group has a centraised approach to the provision of contingency funding for its trading entites Through the GFC, the board penodically
reviews the bquidity demands of the Group and the financial resources available to meet these dermands The GFC ensures that the Group in
totaty and by subsidiary, has sufficient kquidity available n order to provide constant access, even in penods of market stress, to an appropnate
level of cash, other forms of marketable securties and committed funding fines to enable it to finarke its ongoing operations, proposed acquisitons
and other reasonable unanticpated events on cost-effective and attractive terms. Therefore, to meets its bguidity requirements, the Group has
mamntamed minmum core fiquidity, n the form of centrally held cash and undrawn debt faciities, of $250m throughout the year
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11. Capital and liquidity planning and management continued

Laquidity contnued

Group continued

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had borrowings of £282m (2013/14 ~ £535m), the matunty analysis of which s set out nnote 9 and cash
and cash equivalents of £440m (2013714 - £658m) (see note 10(c}) Cash held at dearing houses, or a financia! institution providing ICAP with
access toa CCP, to which the Group has no mmediate access in practice is disclosed as restncted funds in the financal statements (note 10(e))

The Group mvests its cash balances n a range of capital protected mstruments induding money market deposits, AAA-rated iqudity funds, and
government bonds with the objective of optimising the return, while having regard to counterparty credit nsk and fiquidity With the exception of
some simal, local cash management balances, surplus cash s nvested with strong institutions which have an equivalent credtt rating of A or better

Company

The Company’s policy 1s to ensure that t has constant access to an appropnate level of Iquidity to enable t to finance its forecast ongoing
operations, proposed acquisitions and other reasonable unantiopated events on cost-effective and attractive terms If the Company has
any cash, it 15 Ioaned intra-Group for further mvestment All of the Company's financial habilties are payable within three months

Capital management

The Group's capital strateqy s consistent with that, of the ICAP plc Group which is to maintam an efficent and strong capital base which maximises
the return to its shareholders, while also mantaining fiexibility and ensunng cormpliance with supervisory regulatory requirements. The capttal
structure of the Group conssts of debt (note 9) and equity, ncluding share captal (note 25}, share premum, other reserves (note 26) and
retaned eamings

The Group seeks to ensure that « has sufficient regulatory capeta at Group level and n indwdual regulated trading entities to meet, reguiatory
requrements The FCA has granted a wanver until Apnl 2016 that allows the Group to disregard the apphcation of the consofidated capital
requirements of CRD IV and therr requirements indude the Group being prohibrted from taking propnetary postions. The Group continues to
comply with these requirements.

The wanver modfies the caloulation of the Group regulatory capttal position and in effect excludes goodwill adjustments from the capital
computation. As a result of the wawver, the Group's Pllar 1 regulatory capital headroom represents the difference between the capital resources of
the Company, on 3 stand-alone basis, and the regulatory caprtal requirements of the Group calculated, in accordance with the requirements of the
warver, on an aggregate bass Pillar 1 headroom is approximately £0 7bn (2013714 — £09bn) and s relatvely stable due to the low amount of
market and credit rsk in the Group, but may fluctuate due to the brming of dividends and the distnbution of subsidianes’ profits to the Company

Regulatory capital at salo entty level depends on the unsdicion n which it 1s incorporated and operates. In each case the approach s to hold an
appropniate surplus over the local minmum The highest capital requirements anse in the UK, where they are predominantly drven by the fixed
overhead requirernent, which s based an the fixed costs of the pror year and so does not fluctuate significantly within the year As the Group
does not take propnetary postions it does not have an inventory of assets so reguiatory capital s mostly represented by cash

ICAP also evauates at a Group and individual legal entity level the nsks facing the business, to determine whether its caprtal s sufficient to cover
any expected losses The Group uses a scenano-basad model which assesses the economic capital required to cover expected nsks The process
followed at Group level is consistent with the CRD requirement for ICAP's FCA requiated entities to perform an internal caprtal adequacy
assessment process {ICAAP) under Pilar 2 The results for both are docurmented, updated and approved annually by the board and the UK
regulated entity boards respectively The Group overall and each reguiated trading company cormplied with ther regulatory capital requirerments
throughout the year

In general, higher levels of market volatlity can result in increased demand for the Group s services However, as the regulatory captal
requirement s driven predominantly by the fixed cost base, the impact of changes in volumes on the capital requirement 1s significantly
darmpened As such, absent a matenal acguisition, loss of the waver or a change in the computation basis, existing capital resources are
viewed as sufficent to operate and to continue to mvest in the development of the Group's businesses
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12. Intangible assets arising from development expenditure

Development expenditure on software s recogised as an ntangible asset in accordance with the provisions of 1AS38 ‘Intangible
Assets' Capitalised expenditure ts recogrised mitially at cost and 1s presented subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation
and prowvisions for imparment Amortisation of these assets is charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight -line
basis over the expected useful economuc life of the asset of three to five years The Group reviews the usefu! economic lives of
these assets on a regular basis

Development costs are incurred and capitahsed when a final development plan (including the specifics of the assets to be
developed) i1s signed off by a commuttee with appropriate delegated authonty (including business management boards) As part of
the approval process, the commuttee cansiders the commercial viability and technological feasibility of bringing the asset into use

When a project 1s abandoned in the development phase, costs are charged to the income statement Pnor to this stage, costs
incurred in the research phase including undertaking feasibibty studies are recorded in the income statement Qnce an internally
generated software asset 1s brought into use, any ongoing related costs are charged to the income statement to the extent that
they relate to ongoing maintenance of the asset Where any costs are identified by an appropnately authonsed management
commuttee to be an enhancement to the original asset, these costs are capitalised and amortised over the remaining expected
useful life of the asset

The Group has an internal threshold for capitahsation of £5,000 for individual assets and £125,000 for software-related projects
The key component of the development costs 1s compensation of employees Each of the Group's businesses and the Group's
mfrastructure area have therr own dedicated IT project development teams

Amartisation and imparment of intangible assets ansing from development expenditure 1s charged within operating expenses
Amaortisation 1s charged against assets from the date at which the asset becomes available for use

2013114

2014715 Em
Group £m {restated)
Cost
As at 1 Apri 266 203
Additions 48 52
Disposals {32) (8)
F;EdaSSIﬁCBtlonS - 36
Other movements A ) - (1)
Exchange adjustments T T 13 (16)
As at 31 March 295 266
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 1 Apnl i 166 124
Amortisation charge for the year T 34 27
Impairment i the year 1 - -
Disposals h 32) (6)
Reclassifications - ) 31
Exchange adjustments ) 1 (10}
As at 31 March - 180 168
Net book value o ) ]
As at 31 March ) ) 115 100

31




JCAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Notes to the financial statements continued

13. intangibie assets arising on consofidation

Smce 1 Apnl 2004, intangble assets arising on consoikdation include goodwill and other separately identifiable intangible assets such as

customer relationships and customer contracts that arose on business combinations The amortisation and any impairment (s incuded in |
the consolidated ncome statement within the column ‘Acquisiion and disposal costs' The Group reviews the performance of the acquired

businesses and reassesses the perwid over which the acquired intangible asset 1s likely to continue to generate cash flows that exceed the

carrying value

{1) Goodwill

Goodwill arses on the acquisition of subsidianies when the aggregate of the farr value of the considerstion transferred the amount of any
non-controling interest and the fair value of any previcusly held equity nterest in the acquiree exceed the amount of the identifiable net
assets acquired If the amount of the entifiable assets and labiities acquired 15 greater, the difference 15 recognised immediately in the
income statement Goodwill 1s imitially recogmsed at cost and s subsequently held at cost less any prowvision for imparment

Goodwill anses on the acquisiion of Investments in joint ventures when the cost of nvestment exceeds ICAP's share of the net far value
of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and hiabilittes Goodwill arising on the acqnsition of joint ventures is included n ‘Investments in jomt
ventures’ and 1s not tested separately for impawtnent See note 21

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of interests in associates when the cost of Investment exceeds ICAP's share of the net farr value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilittes Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of associates s incuded in ‘Interests in associates’ and 1s not
tested separately for imparment See note 22

Where the Group makes an acquisition and the balances are reported as provisional at the year end, the Group has a measurement penod ‘
of up to 12 months from the date of acquisition to finalise the provisional amounts where new inforration becomes available about facts

and arcumstances that existed at the balance sheet date, which could impact the value of goodwil and mtangible assets ansing on

consalidation The measurement penod ends as soon as the information required 15 recerved

On disposal of a subsidiary, joint venture or associate, the attrbutable goodwall 1s iInchided in the calcutation of the profit or loss on disposal,
except for goodwill written off to reserves pnor to 1998, which remains eliminated

{v) Separately Wdenbfiable mtangible assets

The Group has recognised separately dentified ntangible assets on acquisitions where appropriate These generally include customer
contracts and custorner refationships Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated rvhaliy at farr value and are adjusted
subsequently for amortisation and any impairment Amartisation and impairment of ntangibles ansing on consolidation are recognised

i the secorkd columin of the consolidated income statement. Where an impairment has taken place the asset Is reviewed annually for any
reversal of the impairment Any reversals of impairment are credited to the consclidated income statement All intangible assets have a
firute ife

Amortisation of separately identifiable ntangible assets 1s charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-hne basis over therr
estimated useful ives as follows

Customer relationships 2-10years
Customer contracts Penod of contract
Other intangible assets Penod of contract

A deferred tax lability s recogrised against the asset for which the amortisation 1s non-tax deductible The lability unwinds over the same
period as the asset I1s amortised

(iii} imparrment

Goodwilt 1s not amortised but 1s tested for impawment annually and whenever there 1s an indicator of iImpairment. Goodwill and

cother intangible assets ansmg on conschdation are allocated to a CGU at acquisibon for the purpose of impairment testing, which

1s undertaken at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes The identification of CGUs is reviewed
where there is a significant change to the Group’s segmental reparting structure Imparment testing is performed by companng the
recoverable amount of a CGU with its carrying amount. The carrying amount of a CGU s based on the assets and labilities of each CGL,
including attnbutable goodwill The recoverable amount of a CGU is the tigher of 1ts far value less cost to sell and its value n use (VILF)
ViU 1s the present value of the expected future cash flows from a CGU Where the carrying value of the asset exceeds its VIU, an
imparment charge 1s recogrised immediately in the consolidated income staterment, and the asset 1s stated at cost less accumulated
imparment losses For goodwill impairment charges previously recogrised are not reversed and impaired intangible assets are reviewed
annually for reversal of previcusly recogrised imparment

This process requires the exercise of significant judgerment by management, if the estimates made prove to be incorrect or performance
does not meet expectations which affect the amount and trming of future cash flows goodwill and intangble assets may become
imparred in future penods
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13. intangible assets ansing on consolidation continued
(a) Intangible assets arising on consolidation

Goodwill Cther Total
Em £m Em

cm -
As at 1 April 2014 966 616 1,582
Transfer to held for sale {note 14) (13 {(2) {(15)
Exchange adjustments 61 6 67
As at 31 March 2015 1,014 620 1,634
Amortisation and impainmennt
Asat 1 Aprll 2014 151 512 663
Amortisation charge for the year - 55 55
As at 3t March 2015 151 S67 718
Net book value
As at 31 March 2015 ) ) 863 53 " 916
(restated) GME:: uﬁ Tost:-'
Cost
Asat 1 Apni 2013 ) ~ 1025 627 1,652
Disposals - o @ ™ 3)
Exchange adjustments (57) (10} (67)
As at 31 March 201 4 866 616 1,582
A;n“t:thlsatlon and.:m;);;r;ént T - T T
Asat 1 April 2013 140 448 588
Amortisation charge for the year - 64 64
Impairment in the year 1 - 11
As at 31 March 2014 151 512 663
Net book value
Asat 31 March2014 - T 815 104 919

{b) iImpairment testing of intangible assets arising on consclidation

The Group recognises £916m of intangible assets ansing on consalidation, with £863m relating to goodwall and £53m relating to other
intangible assets The other intangible assets at 31 March 2015 mainly represent customer relationships, and have varying remarming
amortisation penods across CGUs

During the year, goodwill and other intangible assets of £15m attributed to Global Brokings' shipping business were redassified to disposal
group {note 14) The net carrying value of the disposal group Including goodwill was tested separately and no imparment charge was
recorded

The indmdual CGUs' goodwill, other intangible assets arising on consolidation and net assets were tested for mpairment No mpairment
charge was recorded in the year

The comparatives were restated as a result of the adoption of IFRST1 Joint Arrangemnents’ and [AS28 ‘lnvestments in Associates and Jont
Ventures’ therefore the goodwill attributable to jont ventures ts now included within the nvestrment in joint ventures (note 21)
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13. intangible assets arising on consolidation continued

(b) Imparment testing of intangible assets arsmg on consclidatton continued

As at 31 March 2015

% of total

goodwill and Net book

other Goodwil Other value

pcd Business segment miangibies Em £m £m

BrokerTec _Electronic Markets 16 145 - 145

EBS Electronc Markets 41 345 33 378

Reset Post Trade Risk and Information 15 141 - 141

TnOptima Post Trade Risk and Information ‘s 52 - 52

Traiana Post Trade Risk and Information i 13 103 19 122

information Post Trade Risk and Information - 3 - 3

Global Broking Global Broknn?g“ T -] 74 1 75

Total 100 863 53 916

A 1t 31 March 201 4 (restater)

o -

other Goodval Other vake

Gy Business segment ntangbles Em Em £m

BrokerTec Electronic Markets 16 145 - 145

EBS Electronic Markets 39 307 54 361

Reset Past Trade Risk and Information 4 126 - 126

TrOptima Post Trade Risk and Information 9 60 21 81

'ITalana Post Trade Risk and information B 12 91 25 116

Information Post Trade Risk and Information - 3 - 3

Global Broking Global Broking 10 83 4 87

Total 100 815 104 919
Impairment testing methodology

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined using ViU calculations, which are based on discounting management's pre-tax cash flow
projections for the CGU The pre-tax discount rate used 1s the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) ICAP allocates to investments in
the busmnesses within which the CGU operates A long-term growth rate estimate 1s used 1o extrapolate the cash flows in perpetutty
because of the long-term nature of the businesses in the CGUs

For the 2014/15 annual impairment testing of Tratana, management’s cash flow projections for the three years ending 31 March 2018

were used For all other CGUs, management cash flow projections for the year ending 31 March 207 6 were used

in the prior year, consideration recerved from the sale of the minonty stake in Traiana was considered as a proxy for Traana s far value and
was compared to net assets of Traiana including goodwill for recoverability assessment

Key assumptions
Discount rate Long-tarm growth rate
2013 2014 2015 2014
% % % %
BrokerTec L 8.7 a3 4.9 48
EBS 89 _ 96 4.6 46
Reset 9.0 97 4.6 45
TrOptima 8.5 94 4.5 41
Traana I 8.5 nfa 5.1 n/a
Global Brokmg 8.9 96 00 00
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13. Intangible assets arismg on consofidatton continued
{b] Impairment testing of intangible assets arising on consolidation continued

Discount rates

The Group's pre-tax WACC was 8 5% (2013/14 - 9 3%), reflecting an 80 basis-points decrease i the nsk-free rate (represented by the 20-
year UK gift yeld) The Group's WACC & a function of the Group's cost of equity, demved using a Caprtal Asset Pricing Moded (CAPM), and the
Group's cost of debt The cost of equity estmate depended on mputs i the CAPM reflecting a number of vanables ncuding the nsk-free rate and
a prermwm to reflect the inherent nsk of the business being evaluated These inputs are based on the market's assessment of econormic varables
and managermertt judgement. All nputs to the CAPM model were extemally sourced. The CGU-specfic WACCs were then denved by adusting
the Group WACC for business specfic nsk factors

Nominal long-term growth rate

The growth rate reflects werghted average real GDP growth and inflation for the countries within which the CGtJs operate The rates are
based on the International Monetary Fund s medum term forecasts as they are deemed to be reliable estimate of fikely future trends The
rates applied do not exceed the expected growth n the locat economy or, for businesses which operate on a global scale the global GDP
Grven continuing challenges, a rul terminal growth rate was applied for Global Broking

Management’s judgement in estimating the cash flows of a CGU
The cash flow projections for each CGL are based on plans approved by the board of directors The key assumptions included in the cash

flow projections of the CGUs are discussed below

BrokerTec

BrokerTec cash flow projections show continued growth of the US Treasury Actives market and forecast improvement in the volume w
of US Treasury off-the-run trading The cash flow projections will be lower n 2015/16 as 3 result of the investment in a new platform
The key challenges to the cash flow projections anse from potential ncreased competition in the US Treasury Actives market and from
uncertainty around how regulatory reforms such as higher capital requirements for banks wall affect the US and European repo markets

EBS

The key assumptions included in the cash flow projections for EBS are that the increase in revenue 15 driven by new EBS intiatves, upturm
in market activity impacting EBS Market's average dally volume growth and ather growth areas The key challenge to the cash flow
projections 1s a worse than anticipated decrease m EBS Market revenue drnven by a decrease in FX market activity

Reset

The cash flow projections for Reset are anticipated to remain in ine with 2014/15 Qur ability to achieve the budgeted cash flow for
Reset could be challenged if central banks continue therr policy of quantrtative easing (QE), in particular the QE programme recently
undertaken by the ECB, and low and stable interest rates The impact could be offset by some positive changes to the macroeconomic
environment, specifically some sporadic or small Increase in the volatility expectations around the US dollar and pound sterling

TrOptuma

The key assumption inckrded m the cash flow projections for TnOptima reflect muted growth as management believes that tnReduce 15
amatunng business facing increased competition and thus reducing trading volumes on its core products TnOptima is anticipating the
launch of new products wiich contnbute to the cash flow projections in 2015/16, which over three years show increased growth due
to investments to be made n 2015/16

Traiana |
The three-year cash flow praections for Traana up to 201 7/18 were taken from the approved strategic plan for the CGU The key
assumptions for the cash flow projections were continued growth in revenue along with improvement in operating leverage with volume
increases year-on-year The key nsk to the projections anses from certain technology nsks, nchuding capacity bottleneck and data secunty
Global Broking

The cash flow projections for Glebal Broking are based on management’s assumption that the improvernent in market conditrons
expenenced In many asset dasses in the later part of 2014/15 will continue in 2015/16 and the reduced fixed cost base 1s mantaned
The key nsks to the 2015/16 cash flow assumptions anise from worsering market volumes and brokerage rates and the impact of short-
term uncertamtes ansing from requlatory reforms continuing to be felt next year

Based on the conditions at the balance sheet date and having assessed sensitvities of the key assumptions, management determined that
a reasonably possible change in any of those key assumptions noted above would not cause an imparment in any of the CGUs
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14. Disposal group
Disposa! groups {inchuding both the assets and habilities of the disposal groups) are chssified as held for sale when therr carrying amounts

will be recovered principally through sale, they are avadable for sale in ther present condition and thesr sale s lughly probable Disposal
groups are measured at the lower of ther carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell, except for those assets and habilties that are not
within the scope of the measurement requirements of IFRSS Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontnued Operations’ immediately
before the intial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets and liabiities in the dispesal group are measured n
accordance with applicable IFRSs

During the year, ICAP agreed to dispose of its shipbroking busmesses to Howe Robinson Group Pte Limuted for a 35% equity stake n the
resulting combined group busmess The sale s expected to be completed in 2015 As at 31 March 2015, assets and liabilities attnbutable
to ICAP s shipping businesses formed part of the disposal group The fair value of 35% of equity in the combined group, net of disposal
costs, 15 estimated to be hugher than the carrying value of the net assets attnbutable to shipping

As at
31 March
013
£m
Assets heid for safe _ _ _
Goodwill and other intangibles ansing from consoldation R, -
Other 6
Total assets heid for sale o 21
Liabiliies heid for sale i
Other (4)
Net assets heid for sale 17
15. Prowisions

A provision 1s recognised where there is a present obligation, etther legaf or constructive, as a result of a past event for which it is probable
there will be a transfer of economic benefits to settie the obligation A provision is only recognised where areliable estimate can be made
of the value of the obligation

Reguiatory
Restructuring matters Other Toual
£m €m £m Em
Asat 1 Apnl 2014 - 13 5 18
Amounts recognised in the income statement _ 17 1" - 28
Settled duning the year - (8) - 8)
Reclassified from accruals - - 1 1
Exchange adjustments - 1) (1) 2)
As at 31 March 2015 17 15 5 iz
As at 1 April 2013 - - 7 7
Amounts recognised in the income statement - 13 - 13
Released to the income statement - - (1 (1}
Exchange adjustments - - (1) {1)
As at 31 March 2014 - 13 5 18

The expected maturity profile of these provisions is disclosed in note 18

Restructuring

As part of the Group restructunng programme, office spaces in key regions incuding London, New York and Singapore have been vacated
Onerous lease provisions were recorded to reflect the present value of rental obligations on ICAP until the end of the lease pencd net of
estimated sublease income of £3m The present value of the provision is showi net of a discount of £1m As at 31 March 2015, sublet
rental ncome for only one of the three office spaces could be refiably estimated The Group 1s looking at opporturities to sublet the other
vacant office spaces
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15. Provisions continued

Regulatory matters

In February 2015 the European Commssion imposed a fine of £10 9m (€14 3m) on ICAP for alleged compettion violations in relation to
yen Libor, n respect of the same undertying matters that ICAP Europe Limited, a subsidiary of ICAP's Global Braking division settled with
the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the US Commodity Futures Trading Commussion (CFTC) m September 2013 ICAP has
appealed and 15 seeking a full annulment of the Commission’s decision

Regulatory matters also nclude the settlement of £8m dunng the year with the SEC A prowision of £8m was recorded as at

31 March 2014

16. Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees

The Group's cantingenit habibities include possible obligations that anse from past events whase existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertan future events not wholly within the control of ICAP Addiionally, contingent
kabilities also mclude present obligations that have ansen from past events but are not recognised because it is not probable that
settlement will require the outflow of economic benefits or because the amount of the obligations cannot be rehably measured
Contingent hiabiities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the probability of the outflow of the Group s
£CONOMYC resources 1s remate ludgerments apphed in concluding the approprateness of contingent habilties disclosure are confirmed
after consultation with external counsel

Contingent hizbdities

The Company and its subsidianes contimue to co-operate with the government agencies in Europe and in the US relating to their
investigations into the setting of yen Libor The Company 1s no longer a named defendant i the US civil Iigation against vanous yen Libor
and euroyen Tibor setting banks However, the plantff in that itigation has been given permission to add ICAP Europe Limited as a
defendant in that action, which ICAP Europe Limited intends to defend vigorausly The plaintiff is also taking steps to appeal the dismissal
of ICAP plc It is not practicable to predict the ultimate outcome of these iInquines or the litigation As a result it 1s not possible to provide
an estimate of any potential financal impact on the Group

ICAP continues to co-cperate with inquines by the US government agencies into the setting of USD ISDAfix rates Dunng the reporting
pencd, avil lawsuits were filed in the US against USD I1SDAfix setting banks, where a subsidiary of the Company 1s alse a named defendant
Those stits have now been consohdated into a single action The Comparnty intends to defend these higation claims wigorousty It s not
practicable to predict the ulmate outcome of these inguinies or the Iitigation As a result it 1s not possible to prowide an estimate of any
potentia! financial impact on the Group

From time to time the Group 1s engaged in itigation in refation to 3 vanety of matters, and I1s required to provide information to regulators
and other government agencies as part of informal and formal inquines

Details of regulatory and other matters that have a provision recogrised for them are detalled innote 15

Contractual commitments
Operating lease commitments
At the end of the financial year the Group had outstanding comrmitments for future minmum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows

As at As at
31 March 3 March
015 2014
£m £m

Within one year 19 22
Between one and five years 60 66
After five years 17 30
96 118

The commutments include onerous lease provisions charged to the income statement in the year but before the estimated recept of
£3munder a non-cancellable sublease as at 31 March 2015 (2013/14 - £ni) Operating lease commitments relate to the rental of
premises for office space in the UK US, Israel and Asia Pacific

Guarantees

In the normal course of business certain Group companies enter Into guarantees and ndemnities to cover clearing and settlernent
arrangements and/or the use of third party services/software It 1s not possible to quantify the extent of any potentia hablities, but there
are none currently expected to have a matenal mpact on the Group s consolidated results or net assets Asat 31 March 2015, the Group
has given £314m (2013/14 - £123m) of guarantees to counterparbes
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17. Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables are recognsed inttially at far value and subsequently reviewed for recoverability A provision for mparrment of trade
recenvables s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to callect all amounts due according to the
onginal terms of recervables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments, are considered indrcators that the trade receivable s impaired The amount of the
provisien s the difference between the asset's carnying amount and the present value of the future cash flows The carrying amount of
the asset 15 reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 1s recogrised in the consohdated income
statement within ‘operating expenses’ When a trade recewvable s determined to be uncollectable i 1s written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wiitten off are credited against Operating expenses’ in the
consolidated ncome statement

Loans and recevables are non-dervative financial instrurnents whwch have a fixed or determinable value They are recognised at cast less
any prowvisions for impairment in their value

Farr value through profit or loss assets are designated as such where they meet the condtions of 1AS39 'Financial instruments Recognition
and Measurement” They are recognised intially at fair value and any subsequent changes in fair value are recognised drectly in the
consolidated income statement These assets are usually held for short-term gain, or are financial instruments not designated as hedges
The accounting policy for denvative financial instruments is included in note 28

Matched principal transactions are those where the Group acts in a non-advisory capacty as prncipal in the commitment to purchase and
sell secuntties and other financial Instruments through two or more transactions between our customers Such trades have no contractual
settlement date and are complete only when all sides of the transaction are settled, and therefore an aged analysis of matched principal
trade recervables 1s not appropnate Substantially all matched principal recevables and payables settle within a short penod of time, Lsually
within three days of the trade date All amounts due to and payable by counterparties in respect of matched pnncipal business are shown
gross as matched principal trade recevables and miatched prinapal trade payables (note 18), except where a netting agreement which is
tegally enforceable at all times, exists and the asset and liabilty are erther settled net or simultaneously i any unmatched trades remain
outstanding, the asset or liabikty s held within matched principal trade recevables or payables as appropriate and fair valued through the
consclidated income staterment until the trade I1s completed

The Group acts as an mtermediary between our customers for collateralised stack lending transactions Such trades are complete only
when both the collateral and stock for each side of the transaction are returned The gross amounts of collateral due to and recewable are
disclosed in the balance sheet as deposits pard for secunties borrowed and deposits receved for secunties loaned (note 18)

Financial instruments not held at fair value are imparred where there 1s cbjective evidence that the value may be mpaired The amount of
the impairment is calculated as the difference between the carrying value and the present value of any expected future cash flows with
any imparment being recognised in the consolidated income statement. Subsequent recovery of amounts previously impaired are credited
to the consohdated income statement
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17. Trade and other receivables continued

Group
S By~ Sy
31 March A4 31 March 31 Mmarch
2015 Em 0158 2014
Em (restated) £m £m
Non-current receivbies
Deposits _ 2 1 - -
Derwvative financial m;truments h - 1 - -
Other rece:vablgs 3 2 - -
Amounts owed by affiliates ) 70 70 - T
75 74 - 1
Currernt receivables
Matched pnnoipal trade receivables 23,308 21,762 - -
Deposits paid for securities borrowed ) 758 795 - -
Other trade recewables 185 178 - -
Impairment of other trade recevables 3 (3) - -
Amounts owed by affikates 223 343 311 192
Amounts owed by subsidiaries - - 48 108
Armounts owed by joint ventures - 1 - -
Amounts owed by associates 3 2 - -
Amounts owed by other related parties 1 5 - .
Tax recevable ) - - 24 18
Derivative financral mstruments 7 4 7 4
Other receivables 53 62 8 12
Prepayments 37 52 3 4
24,572 23,201 401 338

(a) Credit sk management

The Group s exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties in respect of its name give-up, matched principal,
exchange-traded and corporate treasury operatrons The Group does not bear any significant concentration risk to ether counterparts
or markets

The credit nsk in respect of name give-up and post trade sk and information services businesses (s limited to the collection of
outstanding commission and transaction fees and this s managed proactively by the Group’s accounts recevable function with oversight
from the independent credit nsk function

The matched prncipal business involves the Group acting as a counterparty on trades which are undertaken on a delivery versus payment
basts The Group manages Its credit nisk in these transactions through appropnate policies and procedures in order to mitigate this nsk
including strmgent on-boarding requirements, setting appropnate credsit irmits for all counterparts which are closely monitored by the
regional credit nisk teams to restnct any potential loss through counterparty default A signficant portion of the Group s counterparty
exposure at any given paint throughout the year 1s to investment grade counterparts (rated BBB-/Baa3 or above) The Group's potential
stressed counterparty credit nsk calculated in the ICAAP is less than 5% of the Group's total capital resources

The credit risk on care cash, cash equivalents and denvative financial instruments are monitored on a daly basis All financial mstitutions
that are transacted with are approved by the GFC and internal imits are assigned to each one based on a combination of factars including
external credit ratings The majonty of cash and cash equivalents 15 deposited with investment grade rated financial institutions

Company
The Company 15 exposed to credit nisk in the event of non-performance by counterparties. This nsk s considered minmal as all
counterparties are Group companies and the nsk of non-payment is viewed as low
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17. Trade and other receivables continued

(b) Impairment of other trade recevables

Other trade recervables represent amounts recervable in respect of agency business and information services Al recenvables are indnadually
assessed for mpaiment at the reporting date Management udgement 1 apphed in deterrining whether there s obyective evidence that a loss
event has ecaumed and, if so, the measuremnent of the mpaiment alowance In determining whether there i ohyective evidence that a loss event
has occurred, judgement s exeraised in evaluating all relevant information on indicators of impairment, which s rot restricted to the consideration
of whether payments are contractually past due but maudes broader corgideration of factors ndicating detenoration in the finanaal condition and
autlock of customers affecting ther ability to pay For those recenvables where obyective evidence of mpainment exists, management deterrrnes
the sze of the alowance required based on a range of factors ncluding probability of default and, ff defaulted, expectation of recovery fina
subsequent penod, the amount of the Impaimment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively toan event occurnng after the
Impairment was recognsed, the previously recognised impairment loss s reversed and the reversal s recognised n the Income statement

As at 31 March 2015, £3m of other trade receivables reman impaired (2013/14 - £3m} There have been no new impairments during
the year

Past due but not imparred trade and other receivables are those in respect of which the debtor has fated to make a payment or a partial
payment in accordance with the contractual terms of the invoice, but there 1s no major concern over the credit worthiness of the

counterparty, therefore they are not impaired In the pricr reporting periods, recenvables past a ‘normal settlemnent date were considered
past due and were reported on that basis As at 31 March 2015 the followng other trade recenables were past due but not impaired

Asat
As ot 31 March
31 March 2014
2015 Em
£Em (restated)
tess than 30 days overdue 107 99
Over 30 days, but less than 90 days overdue 51 55
Over 90 days but less than 180 days overdue 11 10
Over 180 days overdm_e__ ) 13 11
182 175

{c) Offsetting financial assets and financial habilrities

Since 2012/73 the Group has operated under a cleanng arrangement for certan LS matched principal transactions on a fully disclosed
clearing bass, which prowides the Group with the legally enforceable nght to set off the recogmised amounts and settle on a net basis
As such, certain matched principal trade recevables and payables (note 18) are recorded on a net basis

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2015 2014

£m £m

Gross recogrised receivable 171,599 128,545
Gross recogrised payable 171,182 128151
Gross amounts that are netted__ o 171,182 128151
Gross amounts subject to netting arrangements that are not offset 417 394
Deposit securities paid (collateral) -~ 15 10
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17. Trade and other receivabtes continued

{d) Trade recervables by currency

The table below shows the concentration of the Group s trade recewvables by currency

Trade receivables as at 31 March 2015

Pound Other
Group s em “em - e =
Matched principal trade recevables 4,533 13,474 3120 356 1,825 23,308
Deposits paid for securrties borrowed - 758 - R - 758
Other trade receivables (net) 32 119 19 3 9 182
_ 4,565 14,351 3,139 358 1.834 24,248
Trade receivables as at 31 March 2014 (restated)
Pound Other
Group ““Z?; m:r'- E::: 'émn e T?:
Matched principal trade receivables 4,441 10,494 4,799 459 1,569 21 7623 i
Deposits pad for securities borrowed - 795 - - - 7§S
Other trade recewables (net) 30 110 19 3 13 175
4,471 11,399 4818 462 1,582 22732

18. Trade and other payables

Accounts payable are recognised intially at fair value based on the amounts exchanged and subsequently held at amortised cost

The accounting pohicies for matched principal transactions and collateralised stock lending are included within the trade and other

receivables note (note 17)

Details of the accounting policy relating to dervative financial nstruments 15 ncluded in note 28

Group

L T S

31 March 2014 31 March 31 March

2015 Em 20158 2014

! £m [restated) Em £m

Current _

KA;the—(j_m-;cT;a-al trade payables 23,266 21,709 - -

Deposits recerved for securites loaned 758 836 = -
Other trade payables 1 8 - -

Amounts owed to affiliates 474 287 333 108

Amounts owed 1o subsidianies i - - 2,045 a3

Amounts owed to associates - 1 = -

Amounts owed to joint ventures 2 2 - -

Amounts owed to related parties 1 2 - -
Derwvatve financial mstrume_nts 10 15 10 15

Accruals 214 206 6 22

Other tax and soctal secunty 10 15 - -

Deferred income 21 18 - -

Other payables 13 13 - -

Contingent deferred consideration 3 2 - -

Deferred consideration 1 1 - -

24,784 23115 2,394 1,076
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Group

Grenp as at Cm.', leﬂ}ﬁ
mat 31 March asat asa
31 March 014 31 March 31 March
2015 Em 2015 2014
£m {restated) £m £m

Non-current payables
Accruals 1 4 - -
Contingent deferred consideration 1 3 - -
Dervative financial mstruments 30 - 30 -
Deferred income 3 1 - -
Qther payables 1 - - -
36 8 30 -

(a) Matunty of trade and other payables and prowvisions

The table below shows the matunty profile of the Group s financial liabilities included within trade and other payables based on the

contractual amount payable on the date of repayment
Maturity of trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2015

Less than Three months One o Graster than
three months to ane year five yeers five years Total
tm Em £m £m £m
Matched principal trade payables 23,266 - - - 23,266
Deposits received for secunties loaned 758 - - - 758
Other trade payables 11 - - - "1
Denvative financial instruments 10 - 30 - 40
Amounts owed to affilates 474 - 700 - 1,174
Amounts owed to jont ventures 2 - - - 2
Amounts owed to related parties 1 - - T T T i
QOther payables 10 3 1 - 14 }
Contingent deferred consideration ) 2 L 1 - Y |
Deferred consideration - 1 - - 1
Provisions ) 2 16 19 - 37
Accruals - ST " 56 158 1 - 215
24,592 179 752 - 25,523
Matunty of trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 201 4 (restated)
i wooeyew  fyes  feyes Tota
Em Em £m Em Em
Matched principal trade payables 21709 - - - 21,709
Deposits recewed for secunties loaned " 836 - - - 836
Cther trade payables 6 2 - - 8
Derwvative financial instruments T - 15 - - 1 ;_
Amounts owed to affilates L 287 - 872 - 1,159
Amounts owed to associates ) 1 - - - 1
Amounts owed to joint ventures - - - 2
Amcounts owed to related parties 2 - - - 2
Other payables ’ 10 3 - - 13
Contlngen_t deferred consideration - 2 3 - 5
at;grred consideration - 1 - - 1
Accruals 67 139 2 2 210
22,920 162 877 2 23 961
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18. Trade and other payables continued

(a) Maturity of trade and other payables and provisions continued
The gross amounts payable have been disclosed above, rather than their net present value Based on therr short-term nature there s no
matenal difference between the net present value and gross amount of the balances dsclosed above

Company

The following tables show the matunity of the Company s liabilities

As at 31 March 2013

As at 31 March 2014

Less than Three
then ul:: ‘rh-: e to thwe morehs Lo one e 10
months ong yexr five years Tousl monthe yeur frve yoars Tetal
£m £m [1,] £&m &m £m £m £m
Borrowings - - 252 252 246 - 208 534
Accruals - 6 - 6 - 21 - 21
Derwative financial
Instruments 10 - 30 40 15 - - 15
Amounts owed to
Group companies 2,378 - 699 3,077 1,040 - 699 1,739
2,388 6 981 3,375 1,301 21 a87 2,309
19. Finandal assets and liabllivdes

(a) Financial assets

The carrying value less impairment of current trade receivables and payables are assumed to approxmate their fair values due to ther

short-term nature

As at 31 March 2015 and 201 4, the far values of financial assets are not matenally different from their book values

Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2015

Hedging Avalable- Loans and
instruments for-te receivables Total
£m Em £m Em
Cash and cash equivalents - - 440 440
Restricted —Fu—ng s - o - - - -36 36
Available-for-safe investments B - 15 - 15
Matched principal trade receivables - - 23,308 23,308
Deposits paid for securities bor_fowed - - 758 758
Other trade receuvables.(net) T - - 182 182
Amounts owed by affillates - - 293 293
Amounts owed by associates - - 3 3
Amounts owed from other refated parties - - 1 . L
Denvative financsal instruments 7 - ) - 7
Other recevables B - - 56 56
7 15 25,077 25,099
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19. Financial assets and liabilities continued
(a) Financsal assets continued

Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2014 (restated)

Hedgng Avaiable- Loans and
astrumers for-wie recenvables Total
£m fm £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents T - 658 658
Restricted Funds . - 32 32
Avallable-for-sale investments ) - _16 - 16
Matched prinapal trade receivables _ - - 21,762 21762
Deposits paid for secunties borrowed ) - - 795 785
Ot-her trade recevables (net) ) - T ‘1_75 1_7_§ )
Amounts owed by affilates - - 413 413
Amounts owed by joint ventures _ e -1 1
Amounts owed by associates ’ _. LT 2 2
Amounts owed from other related parties - - 5 E
Derwvatwve financial instruments 5 - - 5
Cther recevables - - 64 64
5 16 23,907 23928
Financial assets can be reconciled to the balance sheet as follows
ae e 31 Mareh
31 March 2014
2015 Em
Em (restated)
Current recevables (note 17) . 24,572 23 29_1._
Flc;n :current recevables e 774__*5 4_"
Non-current amounts owed by affikates 70 70
Aval Iabfe-For-saIe financial investments (note 23) 15 16
Cash and cash equwalet?ts including restricted funds o 476 690
Excluded i o
Non-financial other recevables ) i (2) )
Prepayments (37) (52)
25,099 23,928

Prepayments and certam items mcluded within other receivables are not defined as financial assets under 1AS39
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19. Financial assets and habilities continued
{b) Financial habihties

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the fair values of financal kabilities are not matenally different from ther book values

Classification of financial iabilitres

31 March 7015 31 March 2014 (restated)
Madging Amortised Hedgng Amortsad
nstruments cost Total nstiuments cost Total
£m Em Em fm £m £m
Matched principal trade payables - 23,266 23,266 - 21,709 21,709
Deposits received for secunties loaned - 758 758 - 836 836
Other trade payables - 1 11 - T8 8
Denvative financial mstruments 40 - 40 15 - 15
Amounts owed to affiliates - 1,174 1,174 - 1159 1159
Amounts owed to joint ventures - 2 2 - 2 2
Amounts owed E associates - - - - ! T
Amounts owed to related parties - 1 :I— - - 2 2
Other payables - 14 14 - 13 13
Contingent deferred consideration - 4 T4 - 5 S
Deferred consideration - 1 1 - 1 1
Accruals ) - 21s 215 - 210 210
Borrowings and overdrafts - 282 282 - 535 535
Provisions - 32 32 - 4 4
40 25,760 25,800 15 24,485 24,500
Financial habilities can be reconciled to the balance sheet as follows
s
31 March 2014
2015 £m
£m (restated)
Current payables (note 18) 24,784 23115
Non-current payables L 36 8
Borrowings and overdrafts (note 9) o 282 535
Non-current amounts owed to affilates " 700 872
Prowisions (note 15) 32 4
Excluded ) -
Tax and social security T - o (15)
Deferred ncome (24) (19)
25,800 24,500

*Excludes ron-contractua provisions

Taxes payable, deferred income and certain provisions are not classified as financial labilities under 1AS39
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19. Financial assets and labilities continued

{b) Financial iabiities contnued
Company

The Company's financial assets and habiities are analysed below

Classification of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and 2014

31 March 2015 31 Mmarch 2014
Loans and Loans and
Dervatve receivables Totral De: receivatl Total
£m £ Em Em £m £m
Finanaal assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 43 43 - 247 247
Amounts owed by Group
companies - 359 359 - 300 300
Dervative financtal instruments 7 - 7 4 - 4
Other recevables - 35 35 - 34 34
7 437 444 4 581 585
31 March 2015 31 March 2074
Amortised Amortised
Derivative cost Total Dernvatrve cost Total
£m £m Em Em £m £m
Financial habilities
Borrowings - 252 252 - 534 534
Accruals - 6 [ - 21 21
Dervative financial instruments 40 - 40 15 - 15
Amounts owed to Group companies - 3,077 3,077 - 1739 1739
40 3,335 3,375 15 2.294 2,309

Group tax recevable 1s not considered to be a financial asset

The fair value of the financial assets and habilities s not matenally different from their book values

20. Principal subsidiaries

An entity 15 regarded as a subsidiary if the Company has control over its strateqic operating and financial policies and intends to hold the
nvestment on a long-term basis for the purpose of securing a contribution to the Groups activities

The Company recognises Investments in subsidianes imtsally at fair value and subsequent changes in value as & result of impairment are

recognised in the income statement

201815 2013/14

Em £m

As at 1 April 3,682 3.644
Additions 1,972 192
Return on capital in relation to restructunng (699) -
Imparment {18) (270)
Reversal of imparment - 116
As at 31 March 4,937 3,682

Additions relate to the re-alignment of the legal entity structure which involved a transfer of investments within the IGHP group This
resulted in a far value uphft of £1,972m (2013/14 - £192m) and return of capital i relation to restructunng of £699m (2013714 -

£nil) n IGHP s overall investment i subsidiaries
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20. Principal subsidiaries contirued

Dunng the year, an imparment charge of £18m (2013714 - £270m) was recorded in the Company's income statement These
imparments largely resulted from the Group restructuring programme which aligned the trading cempanies under its operating segments

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing mformation only in
relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial position, in the opimion of the directors pnincipally affect the financial
statements A complete hist of subsidiaries and associates will be included i the Company s next annual return and filed with Comparies
House The Company s principal subsidianes their country of incorporation and the Group’s ownership are listed below

% held

England EBS Dealing Resources International Lirmited e 00 _

ICAP Energy Limited 100

ICAP Europe Limited 100

. ICAP Global Dervatives Limited e 100

= ICAP Management Sesviceslimted 100

ICAP Secunties Limuted 100

1Swap Limited o 501
Japan ICAP Totan Securities Co Limited o 60
Singapore _ Reset Private Limited . 100
Sweden TnOptima AB 0o
Switzerdand L EBS Service Company Lyvwted 100
United States BrokerTec Americas LLC* 100

EBS Dealing Resources Inc 100

ICAP Capital Markets LLC . 100

ICAP Corporates LLC . 100

ICAP Energy LLC 100
L . ICAP Securites USALLC_ - 100

ICAP Services North America LLC 100

Trawana Inc 867

*Due to corporate restructurng the company name was changed from ICAP Electromic Brokmg LLC on 31 March 2015

The percentage held represents the percentage of ssued ordinary share capttal held (all classes) and also represents the voting nghts
of the Company

The Group has an economic interest of 40 2% iniSwap Limited, but the Investment 1s classed as a subsidiary because the Group 1s the
largest single shareholder (next largest economic interest 1s 14 2%) The Group also employs the key management personnel of (Swap
Limited

All comparues operate in their country of incorporation ICAP Energy Limited, ICAP Europe Lirmited, ICAP Securties Limited EBS Dealing
Resources International Limited, ICAP Securities USA LLC, ICAP Corporates LLC and BrokerTec Amenicas LLC also operate from branches
outside the countnes of Incorporation

All subsidianes are involved in Electronic Markets, Post Trade Risk and Information or Global Broking actmities
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UK subsidranes exempt from audit requirements

The following UK subsidianes of the Company have taken advantage of the exemption allowed from the requirements for the audit of
ther ndmdual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 under section 479A to section 479C of the Companies Act 2006 The

exemption 1s on the basis of the Company prowiding a quarantee of those companies’ labilities as at 31 March 2015

Labdties

as 3t 31 March 2015

under guarantesd*

Regstered umber £
ICAP Holdings (Latin America) Limited o 05162008 _ 23522
ICAP Holdings (Asia Pacific} Limited L 05174354 4,756,152
Garban international 01895476 8 640,342
ICAP Stwpping Internationa Lirmited . _ ) o 06173794 45197,935
ICAP Shipping Limited B . } . 02062368 __16,111,685
ICAP Shipping Tankers Limited 02774629 2,085,325
ICAP UK Investrments No 1 05887529 250799
KAF UK Investments No 2 - . e o __ . 05887539 310550
ICAP Holdings Lirwted 3 L o . . __ 06694563 _ __ 88357
ICAP Holdings (UK) Limited 06505246 63.670
Midhurst Chartering Limited _ . o 07817554 262,959
Capital Shipbrokers LLP _— _ 0C318682 _ 246,694
Godsell Astley & Pearce (Holdings) Limited 01438662 1.318.218
ICAP Holdings {EMEA) Limited N 06694601 672146
Exco Norminees Lirmited _ . . . . . . 02045447 -
Garban-intercapital US Investments {Holdings) Lirmited 04157728 -
Garban-Intercapital US Investments (No 1) Limited 04158432 -

*Total habilities guaranteed of £88 775 778 includes £83 895 124 due to other subsidianes of ICAP pic (the ultimate parent of IGHP and
its subsidtaries) and £4,880,654 due to third parties outside the ICAP plc Group (ICAP ple and its subsidianes) The above liabilities
guaranteed are in addition to the guarantees made by Company as disclosed in note 16

21. Investment in joint ventures

Investments In joint ventures are recognised using the equity methed Under this method, such investments are initially stated at cost,
including attnbutable goodwil, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquistion change tn the Growp's share of net assets

Investments n joint ventures are reviewed for indicators of impairment under 1AS39 Financial nstruments Recognition and

Measurement” Whenever application of IAS39 indicates that an investment may be mparred, the carrying amount of the nvestment,
including attnbuted goodwall, 1s tested for impairment as a single asset under 1AS36, by comparing the carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (the higher of VIU and farr value less costs to sale)

The Group adopted IFRS11 "Jont Arrangements’ and IAS28 Associates and Joint Ventures' for the financia! year beginning 1 Apnl 2014
Previously. the Group proportionally consolidated the joint ventures’ results and position of its joint ventures under IAS31 The Group
determined that as a result of the adoptions of IFRS11 and IAS28 the joint ventures results will not be proportionately consolidated in the
Group financial staternents but will be treated under the equity accounting method

Movements in investments injoint ventures

2013714

Em

(restated)

As at 1 Apn . o _ . . . ._8
Share of profit for the year ) o 2
Dividends receved 1) (4)
As at 31 March 6
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21 Investment in joint ventures continued
Summary finanoal information of joint ventures
The Group's share of joint ventures’ assets, habilities and profit 1s given below

As at
As at 31 March
39 March 2614
2015 Em
S (restated)
Assets 1 9
Liabibties o e 3) (3)
Year endec
Year ended 31 March
31 March 2074
2018 Em
Em {restated)
Revernue ~ _ 9 9
Operating expenses (5) (6)
Profit before tax . 4 3
Tax (4} (1
Share of profit of joint ventures after tax 3 2
Joint ventures - Group
The Group s jont ventures and ther country of incorporation are listed below
Principal
% heid actwvity
Mexico SIF ICAP, SA de CV i 500 Broking
United States TFS-ICAP LLC 230 Broking

All joint ventures have a 31 December year end The difference in the jont ventures’ year ends to the Group's year end 1s not considered

to have a matenal impact on their results

22. Invesument in associates

Investments i associates are recognised using the equity method Under this method, such investments are imbially stated at cost,

including attributable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change i the Group's share of net assets

Investments in associates are reviewed for indicators of imparment under IAS39 Financial instruments Recogrition and Measurement
Whenever application of IAS39 indicates that an investrment may be impaired, the carrying amount of the mvestment, including attributed
goodwill, 15 tested for imparment as a single asset under 1AS36, by comparing the carrying-amount with its recoverable amount (higher

of VIU and fair value less costs to sell)

Movements In Interests in associates

2014715 2013114
£m £m

Cost
As at 1 April 68 52
FGEltlons 1 14
Share of profit for the year 3 3
Drvidends received 4 (4)
Exchange adjustments 1 {7)
As at 31 Manch 69 68
As at 1 Apnil o L L o . 8 8
Asat3iMarch ST T B 8 8
Net book value
As at 31 March 61 60
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22 Irvestment in associates continued

Summary financial information for associates
The Group's share of associates’ assets, liabilities and profit 1s given below

As at As at

31 March 31 March

20153 24

Ein £Em
Assets 60 5§_
Liabilities {25) (25)

Year ended Year ended

31 Masch 31 March

2018 2014

£m Em

Revenue . L 38 28
Operating expenses (33) (23)

Profit before tax L 5 S
Tax (2) (2}

Share of profit of associates after tax 3 3

Dunng the year, the Group sold a 60% stake in First Brokers Secunties LLC, a feading interdealer broker in US dollar -denominated
corporate debt The remaining 40% mnvestment has been reclassified as an associate

As at 31 March 201 5, the Group held a 15 4% (2013/14 - 15 2%) equity interest n OpenGamma Inc wath the nvestrment classfied as an
assocate The Group has sigrificant nfluence through its representatian on the board of drrectors of OpenGamma Inc

The Group's associates and their country of incorporation are listed below

% held Principal 3ctvity

England BSN Capital Partners Limited ) 251 Broking
Hong Kong_ Capttal Shipbrokers Limited L o 490 _ﬁ[?,'f!ﬂf;l___

Japan Totan ICAP Co Limited 400 Broking
Central Totan Secunities Co Limited _20 ___Broking

J—e;s;y Enso LP o T T T T T 394 Post Trade Risk and Information

Mala.ysra ) Arnan.ah Butler Malaysia Sdn Bhd 321 Broking

Spamn o Corre-taje é Informacidn Monetarna )Q_e Divisas SA 275 Brokl'nq
[szeg S:at—es T as Aggregatlon-Serwces LLC B T 7T a2s Po.st?aaé Rl—slz ;BdTr\f;raw:tao;-

ICAP Patent Brokerage LLC 480 Broking

T First Brokers Secunities LLC T 400 o Broking

OpenGamma Inc 154  Post Trade Risk and Information

All share holdings are in ordinary shares except for the investrment in Capital Shipbrokers Limited which 1s 3 combination of voting and non-
voting shares

BSN Capital Partrers bimited, CLS Aggregation Services LLC and OpenGamma Inc have 31 December year ends The diffference inthese
associates’ year ends to the Group's year end 1s not considered to have a material impact on ther results All other associates have a 31
March year end
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23. Availableforsale investments

3N

2014715 Em
Em (restated)
As at 1 Apnl 16 26
Additions - 1
Disposals o 2) (1
Impairment ) -
Revaluation in the year recagnised in ather comprehensive incormne L] -
Transfer to associates - (9}
Exchange adjustments 1 (1)
As at 31 March 15 16
Year encled
Year ended 31 March
11 March 2014
2015 Em
Em {restated)
Non-current availablefor-sate investrents
Held at fair value 1 -
Held at cost less imparment 14 16
Totad 15 16
The farr value of £1m (2013/14 - Enil) was determined using level 1 nputs, beng the quoted prices of the equity instruments
Year ended
Year ended 31 March
37 March 2014
2015 £m
£m (restated}
Equities listed in the US o 1 -
Equities Wisted in the rest of the world - 1
Total listed securities i i ) o 1 1
Enl_lsil.-d securities L - o
Equity investments 14 14
Other - 1
Total uniisted securities ) 14 15
Total available-for-sale Investments 15 16
Avallable-for -sale investments are denominated in the following currencies
Other
Dallar Euro Yen uTences Total
Group £m Em £m £m £m
As at 31 March 2015 2 - 4 2 15
As at 31 March 2014 (restated) 2 - S 2 16
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24. Property and equipment

Property and equipment & recognised imitially at cost including the onginal purchase pnce of the asset and the costs attnbutable
to bnnging the asset nto its ntended use Praperty and equipment 1s subsequently presented at initial cost Jess accumulated depreciation
and any provisions for impawment in its value It 1s depreciated on a straight-hne basis over its expected useful economic Iife as follows.

Period of lease
3 - Syears

Short leasehold property improvements
Furruture, fixtures and equipment

The Group reviews its deprecatton rates regularly to take account of any changes in aircumstances These rates are determmed on
consideration of factors such as the expected rate of technological development and anticpated usage levels

When a leasehold property becomes surplus to the Group's foreseeable business requirements, a provision s made on a discounted basis

for the expected future net cost of the property

2014/13 2013714
Short
Short learsahold Fumzure

teasehold Fumniture, propesty farures and

property  Fxtures and Total xmerovements eaupment T‘}‘:,'
Group £m T tm £m ) {restated) 0
Cost
As at 1 Apnil 41 93 134 27 122 149
»ﬂpons - 8 : ] 1 12 13
Ossposals (6) (33) (39) - G) (9)
Reclassifications 3 3 - 16 (19) (3}
Exchange adjustments 2 9 11 (3) (13) (16)
As at 31 March 40 74 114 41 93 134
Accumutated depreciation
As at 1 April 29 69 98 13 94 107
Charge for the year 3 10 13 3 13 16
Disposals {6) (33) (39 - {9) (9)
Reclassifications - - - 14 an (3)
Exchange adjustrments 2 8 10 (1} (12) 13)
As at 31 March 28 54 a2 29 69 a8
Net book value
As at 31 March 12 20 32 12 24 36
25. Share capital

Ordinary shares are recogrised in equity as share capital at their nominal value The difference between consideration receved and
the nominal value s recognised in the share prenmium account

(a) Issued share capital

2074/1%5 W4
£m Em

Allotted and fully paid Ordinary shares of £1 each
As at 1 April 233 233
tssued dunng the year = -
As at 31 March 233 233

At 31 March 2015 and 2014 there were 233,478,001 shares in 1ssue
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26. Other reserves

Total

Merger Hedging  Revaluaton other

reserve reserve resarve ressrves

Group £m £m £m £m
As at 1 April 2014 259 2 46 307
Unrealised (loss)/gain in the year - (3 1 (7)
As at 31 March 2015 259 (6) 47 300
Total

Merger Heigng Revalugton other

reserve ressrve reserve meserves

Group £m &m €m £€m
As at 1 April 2013 259 (6) 46 259
Urrealised gain in the year - 8 - 8
As at 31 March 2014 259 2 46 307

27, Acquisitions

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiartes by the Group The cost of acquisitron 1s measured
at far value of the assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and habrlities Incurred or assumed at the date of exchange identifiable assets
acquired and habiities and contingent iabilites assumed m the business combination are measured mtially at therr fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any munonty interest The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill If the costs of the acquisition are less than the far value of the net
assets acquired the difference is recognsed directly in the consolidated iIncome statement Fees associated with an acquisition are
expensed as incurred When the Group increases its investment in an entity resulting in an associate becoming a subsidiary the intangibles
related to the acquisition are valued and the element of those not previously recognised as a share of net assets are recorded as
revaluation gains realised in the year in other comprehensive income A change of ownership that does not result in a loss of control s
dassified as an equity transaction, with the difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest 1s recorded and the fair
value of the consideration received recogrised directly n equity

Where the Group has 1ssued a put option over shares held by a non-controling interest, the Group derecognises the non-controlling
nterests and instead recognises a contingent deferred consideration kability for the estimated amount likely to be pad to the non-
controling interest on exercise of those options The residual amount, representing the difference between any consideration
paid/payable and the non-controiling interests’ share of net assets, © recogrised in equity Movements in the estimated hability after intial
recognition are recogrused within the consofidated income statement Where the Group has a cafl option over shares held by a non-
controling interest, the Group continues to recogrise the non-controfing nterest untl 1t 15 certam that the option will be called At that
point the accounting treatment is the same as for a put cption

a) Acquisitions n the year
There were no acqusitions dunng the year other than those classified as associates (see note 22)
b) Contingent deferred consideration in respect of acquisitions

included within contingent deferred consideration are amounts which are exercisable at certain dates in the future on put options written
over shares held by non-controlling interests where the Group considers it highly likely that these options will be exercised

At 31 March 2015 a contingent deferred consideration of £4m (2013/14 - £5m) was outstanding
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28, Cumrency risk management

The Group uses vanous financial nstruments as hedges to reduce exposure to FX and mterest rate movements These can include forward
FX contracts, currency options and cross currency swaps All denvative financial Instruments are initially recogmised on the balance sheet at
their farr value, adusted for transaction costs Where denvative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting changes i the
far value are recogrised iImmediately n the consolidated ncome statement, along with transaction costs Where they do qualify, gains and
losses are recogrised according to the nature of the hedge relationship and the tem being hedged Hedges are ether dassified as farr
value hedges cash flow hedges or net nvestment hadges

The farr values of the Group's dervative financial nstruments are determined using appropnate vatuation techmques from observable data,
ncluding discounted cash flow analyss, as no active markets with quoted prices exst for the instruments held by the Group

The method of recognising the movernents in the fair value of a dervative depends on whether the instrument has been designated as a
hedging iInstrument and, if so, the nature of the exposure being hedged To qualify for hedge accounting, the terms of the hedge must be
documented dlearly at Inception and there must be an expectation that the denvative will be highly effective n offsetting changes in the
fair value or cash flows attnbutable to the hedged nsk Hedge effectiveness is tested throughout the Iife of the hedge and, if at any paint it
15 concluded that the relationship can no longer be expected to remain ighly effective in achieving its abjective, the accounting for the
hedge refationship 15 terminated

Fair value hedges dervative financial instruments are classified as fair value hedges when they hedge an exposure to changes in the fair
value of a recogrised asset or liabikty that s attributable to a particular nsk that could affect the consolidated income statement The
bedging instrument 15 recorded at far value on the balance sheet, with changes in its fair value being taken through the consohdated
ncome statement For pertads in which the hedge 15 shown to be effective, the gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged
nsk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and 15 recognised in the consolidated income statement The gain or loss refating to
the ineffective portion is recagnised in the consolidated ncome staternent

Cash flow hedges denvatwve financial instruments are dassified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Group s exposure to changes
in the cash flows attributable to a particular asset or lability or a highly probable forecast transaction Gains or fosses on designated cash
flow hedges are recognised directly n other comprehensive income, to the extent that they are determined to be effective Any remating
ineffective portion of the gan or loss 1s recognised immediately in the consolidated iIncome statement On recognition of the hedged asset
or hability, any gains or losses relating to the hedging instrument that had previcusly been recognised directly n other comprehensive
mncome are ncluded in the imitial measurement of the far value of the asset or babiity When a hedging instrument expires or 15 sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss In equity remains there and 15 recognised n
the consolidated income statement when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately recogrised When a forecast transaction 1s no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gan or loss that was reported in other comprehensive income s transferred immediately to the
consolidated income statement

Net investment hedges changes m the value of foreign-denorminated investrments due to currency moverments are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income The accounting treatment for a net investrment hedging mstrument, whether (t 1s a dervative financial
instrument or a recognised asset or liability on the balance sheet, 1s consistent with the aforementioned treatment for a cash flow hedge
Gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are included in the consolidated income statement on the ultimate disposal
of the foreign-denominated investment The gain or loss relating to any ineffectrve portion is recognised in the consolidated income
statement

Group

The Group presents its consolidated financial statements in pound steriing and conducts business in 3 number of other currencies,
principally the doilar and euro Consequently the Group 15 exposed to FX nisk due to exchange rate movermnents which affect the Group’s
transactional revenue and the translabon of the earnings and net assets of its non-pound sterfing operations

The principal exchange rates which affect the Group are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements

(a) Transactional exposures

The Group’s policy 1s for all subsidianes to hedge their matenal non-functional currency transactional exposures through a combenation

of forward FX contracts and options for up to two years forward The majonity of these exposures relate to dollar and euro sales ansing

in pound sterling functional currency companies The Group revised its hedging policy during the year such that, under the revised pohcy, 2
rmarimum of 75% of the forecast exposures are hedged for the first six months, 50% for the following six months and 25% for the next
six months

The Group has contracts in place, designated as cash flow hedges under IAS39 where appropriate with a total notional value of 62% of its
forecast dollar and 64% of its forecast euro transactional exposures for the year to 31 March 2016 These contracts are at average rates
of $1 6124/£ and €1 2655/f respectively
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28. Currency risk management continued

Group continued

(b) Balance sheet transiational exposures

The Group 1s exposed to balance sheet translational exposures at the local entity level where the local consolidated balance sheet may
contan maonetary assets or labdibies dencminated in a currency other than the entity’s functional currency Where matenal, it s the
Group s policy to hedge 100% of these exposures using a mix of foreign currency swaps and forward FX contracts

Balance sheet transiational exposures also anse on consolidation as a result of the retranslation of the balance sheet of the Group's non-
pound sterling aperations, princepally dellar and ewra, nto pound sterling, the Group s presentational currency The Group's general policy 1s
not to actively manage these exposures, as active management using Instruments with a shorter tenure than the underlying net asset can
give rise to a net cash outflow However, from time to time it will use forward FX contracts, Cross currency swaps or non-pound sterfing
denommnated borrowings to mitigate these exposures As at 31 March 2015 the Group has $235m of forward FX contracts, and €100m
of the 2019 five-year senior nates, designated as hedging mstruments against the underiying dollar and euro exposures respecively As
at 31 March 2015 these exposures were $1 Sbn (2013/14 - $1 6bn} and €0 1bn (2013/14 - €0 2bn) nchuding intangible assets
ansing on consclidation, but before $0 2bn (2013714 - $0 2bn) and €0 1bn (2013/14 - €0 1bn) of hedging

The Group discloses in note 2 the actual impact and anticipated impact on the Group's 2014/15 operating profit from the movements
dunng the year of the dollar and euro exchange rates in terms of transactional and translational exposures The table below shows the
actual impact on the Group’s equity of movements in the dollar and euro exchange rates in terms of transactional and translational
exposures The table below also discloses the anticipated impact on the Group's equity of a 10 cent weakening which the Group
conscders to be an appropriate sensitivity measure, in the dollar and euro in terms of transactional and transiabonal exposure

201415 2013714
Dollar € Total Dolar Euro Tocal
Em im Em £m £€m £m
Actual impact 83 (10) 73 (93) (8} (101}
10 cent weakening (62) ()] (69) (62} (13) (75)

(¢) Derwvatrve financial mstruments

Among other methods, the Group uses denvative financial instruments to implement its FX policy These include the use of forward FX
contracts to hedge a portion of its transactional dollar and euro exposures and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the FX and
interest rate risks on its senior notes Where these are designated and documented as cash flow hedges in the context of 1AS39 and are
demonstrated to be effective mark-to-market gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and transferred to
the consolidated income statement on derecognition of the undertying item being hedged The table below presents the carrying value of
the Group's dervative financial instruments

As 3t 37 March 2018 AS at 31 March 2014

Assats Lisbiltes Assets Lat#tes

£m £m £m £m
Forward FX contracts - cash flow hedges 7 (12) 4 (6)
Cross currency swaps - cash flow hedges - (28) - (10}
Cross cur;ena -.r.;v_ap_s “farr value I'.lr-e.aée_s - T ) - - 1 -
Forward FX contracts - net investment hedges - - - -
7 (40) 3 (16)

No amounts (2013/14 - £nil} were recogmised in the cansolidated income statement i the year as a result of ineffectve hedges

Farr value heerarchy for the dervatve financial instruments

As 5t 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Derivative assets - 7 - - 5 -
Derivative habilities - {40) - - (16) -

In denving farr value of all dervative mstruments as at 31 March 2015, valuation models were used which incorporated obsevvable
market data There were no signficant inputs used in the models that were uncbservable
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Company

Balance sheet translational exposures

The Company is exposed to balance sheet translational exposures where the balance sheet contains financial assets or babiities
denominated in a currency other than pound sterling It is the Group's policy to hedge 100% of these exposures at Group level
and Company level =

29. Related party transactions

Parent company

The Company's immediate and ultimate parent 15 ICAP plec, which heads the largest group of companies of which the Company s a
member that prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS Copres of the consolidated financial statements of (CAP
plc can be obtaned from the Company Secretary, ICAP plc, 2 Broadgate London, EC2M 7UR or from the ICAP website at www icap com
The Company heads the smallest group of companies which produce consohdated financial statements

Group
Related party transactions ~ subsidianes of \CAP plc
Year ended 31 March 2013 Yeear enden 31 March 2014 (restated)
Managermert services
{u
tntarest charges (recerved)/provided \nterest charges (recewed)/provded
Em Em Em £m
Parent company n - (10 -
Affilate companies (17 (6) (17) -

The IGHP Group had the following recevable/(payable) balances with related parties who are members of the ICAP Group

As at

31 mareh
As at
31 March 2014
015 £m
[ (restated)
Parent company 158 19
Affikate companies (1,039) (865)
(881) (746)

The majanty of the Groups UK companies are party to a netting agreement All balances are unsecured

Related party transactions other

(a) IPGL

IPGL 5 a companty controlled by Michael Spencer, the Group Chief Executive Officer of ICAP plc During the year a number of transactions
took place between IPGL and its subsidianes and the Group and these are detaled below

IPGL Limited {IPGL)

The Group collected revenue on behalf of IPGL of £156 (2013/14 - £2,786) Dunng the year, the Group charged IPGL £144 (2013/14
- £841) n respect of employees of the Group who prowided services to IPGL and its investments and £ril (2013/14 - £1,727)in
respect of other senvices As at 31 March 2015, IPGL owed the Group £6,113 (2013/14 - £6,125)

Exotix Holdings Limited (Exotix)

As part of the disposal of Exatix to IPGL in 2007, the Group loaned employees of Exotix Limited, a subsidiary of Exotix £1 5m to enable
them to purchase a shareholding Interest of £5,069 (2013/14 - £924) has been charged on these loans dunng the year The Group
collected revenue of £8,439,804 (2013/14 - £6,970,687) on behalf of Exotix and recharged Exotix £230,049 (2013/14 -
£255,210) for clearng-related services and £25,063 (2013/14 - £288,435) for other services provided dunng the year As at 31
March 2015, there was a balance due to Exotix from the Group of £10,169,250 (2013/14 - £356 119) The Group holds £1 9m
(2013/14 - £19m) as collateral from Exotix on depost

56







&

JCAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Notes to the financial statements continued

29. Reilated party transactions continued

Related party transactions other continued

City Index Limited

During the year the Group has charged FXSolutions (an ndirect subsidiary of IPGL) £rul (2013774 - £15,000) for the provision of FX data
from its EBS platform As at 31 March 2015 there was £nd balance outstanding with the Group (2013/14 - £nl)

(b) TFS-ICAP LLC, TFS-ICAP Australia, TFS-ICAP Japan, TFS-ICAP Limited and TFS-ICAP Singapore

The Group invarces and collects revenue on behalf of TFS-ICAP LLC. Duning the year the Group invaiced and collected Enil (2013714 -
£90.736) for which it did not recesve a fee Dunng the year the Group recharged the vanous joint ventures a fee as compensation for
overheads and IT support costs as follows TFS-ICAP LLC - £nd (2013/14 - £123,527), TFS-ICAP lmited - £11,247 (2013/14 -
£25,475) As at 31 March 2015 the outstanding balance from all the joint ventures to the Group was £533 494 (2013/14 -
£1.175,713 due from the Group)

(c) BSN Capital Partners Lemuted (BSN)

The Group provides BSN, an associate undertaking, with office space and faciity services Dunng the year, the Group charged 85N

£74 268 (2013/14 - £144,627) for these services. The Group also has a preferred brokerage agreement with 8SN and has recogrised
revenue of £B7,657 (2013/14 - £188,257) during the year As at 31 March 2015 the outstanding balance was £497,824 (2013/14
- £385.822}

(d) Capital Shipbrokers Limited

The Group colfected revenue on beha!f of Capital Shipbrokers Umited, an associate based in Hong Kong of £6,542 (2013/14 -
£2,024,346) The Group also recharged Capital Shipbrokers Limited £2,642 (2013/14 - £143,649) for overheads and wrote off
bad debt provisions of £309,023 The tota! outstanding balance due to the Group was £808,123 (2013/14 - £1,028 590 due
from the Group)

(e) CLS Aggregation Services LLC (CLSAS)

The Group recharged CLSAS, an associate company, £4,410,083 (2013/14 - £3,796,920) as compensation for technical services
dunng the year As at 31 March 2015 the total cutstanding balance due to the Group was £459,588 (2013/14 - £712,917) The
Group received £4,322,394 (2013/14 - £6,313 049) from CLSAS dunng the year

(P First Brokers Securities LLC

The Group recharged First Brokers Securtties LLC, an associate company since February 2015, £424,835 (2013/14 - £nil) for
overheads and recharges dunng the year As at 31 March 2015, the outstanding balance due to the Group was £461,638 (2013/14 -
£nil)

{9) ICAP Patent Brokerage LLC

The Group recharged ICAP Patent Brokerage LLC, an associate company, £452 for overheads and recharges dunng the year During the
year, the Group loaned ICAP Patent Brokerage LLC £726,338 (2013/14 - £1,138,146) As at 31 March 2015, the outstanding balance
due to the Group was £2,004,064 (2013/14 - £1,138,146)

Related party transactions are made on an arms length basis

Key management personnel

The directors of the Company are considered solely the key management personnel of the Company Dunng the year, key management
personnel of the Company recerved remuneration of £3 9m (2013/14 - £2 7m) relating to services performed in relation to the Group
Total compensation paid duning the year to the highest earming director of the Company was £1 2m {2013/14 - £1 4m)

The key management personne! of the ICAP Group are the GEMG, whose services also relate to the Group The aggregate remuneration
for the key management for 2014/15 was £15m (2013/14 - £10m)

Company

Duning the year the Company entered into the following transactions with subsidianies
Year ended Year ended
33 March 31 march
015 2014
Em Em
Management services expenses 33 17
Net interest from refated parties 40 £l

Amounts owed to the Company from subsidianies are disclosed n note 17 and amounts owed by the Company to subsidianes are
disclosed in note 18
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JICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Notes to the financial statements continued

30. Events after the balance sheet date
On 7 Aprd 2015 the ICAP plc Group confirmed the detalls of the transaction to dispose of its shipbroking businesses to Howe Robinson
Group Pte Limited for a 35% equity stake in the resulting combined group business
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LICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Other information

Definitions and gI;Jssary

Acquisttion and &s defined in the ICAP plc 2015 Annual report, Bexs of Preparation section

disposal costs

ccr central counterparty

CcDs credit default swap

CFTC U5 Commodity Futures Trading Commussion

Companies Act Companies Act 2006 (as amended}

CRD Capital Requirements Directive

dollar or § unless otherwise specified all references to dollars or § symbaol are to the currency of the US

EBS EBS Group Umited and s subsidianes

FCA Finanaal Conduct Authority a successor to the Finanaat Services Authonty

FICC Fixed Income Oearing Corporation

Fitch Fitch Ratings Limited

GEMG Global Executve Management Group, of the ICAP ple Group

GFC Global Finance Commuttee of the ICAP plc Group

ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

IFRS International Financial Peparting Standards

Libor Landon Interbank Offered Rate

Moody’s Moody s Investors Serices

NSCC Mational Secunities Cearing Corporation

oTC over-the-counter markets in which instrurnents are tradad dvectly between participants by telephone and/for
electronically rather than vie an exchange

Reset Reset Privete Lirmited

RCF revohing credit facility

SEF swap execution facility

SEC Secunties and Exchange Commussion, a US reguiator

Tibor Tokyo Interbank Cffered Rate

Traiana Traiana Inc and subsidianes

TrOptima TnOptima AB and its subsidianes
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